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SOARING
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BEYOND OUR

BOUNDARIES

2005 has been a year of exploration, growth and
expansion for OKP. The image of an aeroplane taking
ﬂight is both symbolic of our regional expansion and
also represents the successful completion of airport
runway related projects in Singapore as well as tender
of our maiden overseas airport runway related project
in Saipan, which has started the momentum for
growth of the Group.

The majestic ﬂyover depicts our solid foundation and
capabilities in land transport infrastructure and civil
engineering, making us the preferred choice
of contractor.

With the sky as the limit, OKP is set to soar beyond
our boundaries, and to greater heights.
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Our Vision
To be a leading regional
transport infrastructure builder
and civil engineering company
in Singapore, and to be the
premium provider of technical
management services in the
region and beyond.
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Our Mission
To be the ﬁrst and preferred
choice of contractor for land
transport infrastructure and
civil engineering projects in
Singapore and the region.
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2005
39 YEARS OF

Excellence

Our Guiding Principles
To Our Clients,
we are committed to providing them with a superior ﬁnished product that
meets their time schedule, exceeds their requirements in quality and reliability
and is within their budget.

To Our Suppliers,
we are committed to developing and strengthening relationships with them,
such that they are recognised as valued contributors to our business, and
we as their preferred customer.

To Our Employees,
we are committed to providing them with a working environment that provides
them the tools for safe working conditions, training and advancement in their
ﬁelds and rewards their productivity.

To Our Shareholders,
we are committed to maximising their return on investment while maintaining
excellence in our products and services.

1966
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Corporate Profile
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Design and Widen Bukit Timah Expressway
from Kranji Expressway to Seletar Expressway

OKP Holdings Limited (“OKP”) is involved in Road & Building Construction and Road Maintenance in Singapore.
The Company has ﬁve subsidiary companies namely Or Kim Peow Contractors (Private) Limited, Eng Lam
Contractors Co (Pte) Ltd, OKP Technical Management Pte Ltd , OKP Investments (China) Pte Ltd and OKP
(CNMI) Corporation in Saipan, the Commonwealth of Northern Mariana Islands.

Incorporated in Singapore on 15 February 2002 as an investment holding company and subsequently listed
on the Singapore Exchange of Singapore Dealingand Automated Quotation System (“SESDAQ”) on 26 July
2002, OKP was established in 1966 by Founder and Chairman, Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM.

The Group has two core business segments, namely Road & Building Construction and Road Maintenance.
It tenders for both public and private civil engineering and infrastructure construction projects, which
involve the construction of urban and arterial roads, expressways, vehicular bridges and ﬂyovers, as well
as the maintenance of roads and road-related facilities and building construction-related works. The Group
is also recently involved in overseas projects.

Presently, OKP’s clientele includes the Land Transport Authority (”LTA”), the Housing Development Board
(”HDB”), the Jurong Town Corporation (”JTC”), the Civil Aviation Authority of Singapore (”CAAS”) and the
Public Utilities Board (”PUB”).

OKP intends to explore the road construction and maintenance business in emerging markets such as
Micronesian region as well as expand customer base by undertaking more private sector projects in
Singapore and the region.
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Milestones

•

Listed in SESDAQ on 26 July 2002

•

Secured the ﬁrst airport-related project
worth $39.5 million

•

Secured the ﬁrst design and build
project worth $21.6 million
Secured the ﬁrst design and build project
– Design and Widen Bukit Timah Expressway
from Kranji Expressway to Seletar Expressway

2002

•

Incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary
company, OKP Investments (China) Pte Ltd to
handle construction-related business in China

•

Invested in an associated company, Anhui
SIN-HK Management & Consultancy
Company Limited

•

Entered into an Alliance Agreement with
other building and construction professionals
to offer a one-stop solutions centre to
customers in India and other countries

•

Undertook the ﬁrst high-rise building
construction-related project worth $10.5
million with a private property developer

2003
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•

Incorporated a 96%-owned subsidiary
company, OKP (CNMI) Corporation in
Saipan, Commonwealth of Northern Mariana
Islands (“CNMI”) to handle the Group’s
infrastructure, construction and buildingrelated businesses in CNMI

•

De-registration of the associated company,
Anhui SIN-HK Management & consultancy Co

2005

•

Ranked the 2nd runner-up for the 30th
Annual Report Award in the SESDAQ-listed
companies category
•

•

Awarded our ﬁrst overseas project worth
approximately $14.3 million in Rota

Successfully completed the ﬁrst high-rise
building construction-related project
•

Being the ﬁrst Singapore company to do
business in the CNMI

•

Secured a local project worth approximately
$50 million in the oil and gas industry

•

Awarded gold winner for the Best Annual
Report Award for SESDAQ company
at the Inaugural Singapore Corporate
Awards 2006

Completed the ﬁrst high-rise building constructionrelated project – Dunman View Project

2 004

2006
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RISING

TO NEW

CHALLENGES

For

more

than

39

customers

have

relied

exceptional

breadth

years,

and

on

our
our

depth

of expertise to add value to their
projects, reduce cost and improve
project schedule.
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Chairman’s Statement
Dear Shareholders,
OKP made signiﬁcant strides during 2005, with the award of our ﬁrst overseas
project. We continued to turn in satisfactory results despite a business climate
that remained challenging throughout the year.

Financial Highlights
Our revenue for the second half of FY2005 shrunk by around 32.6% to $24.7 million from
$36.6 million in FY2004. However, we remained proﬁtable and recorded an overall proﬁt after
taxation of $0.3 million. The one-time drop in proﬁt incurred in the second half of FY2005
is mainly attributable to a lower recognition of revenue from projects, which were completed
during the second half of FY2005 and additional costs incurred as a result of the extension of
the completion periods, giving rise to the actual cost exceeding internal projections in some of
our Group’s projects.
Our Group remained in sound ﬁnancial position with net current assets amounting to more than
$10.6 million. Cash and cash equivalents of $7.7 million generated in FY2005 saw a 10.9%
increase from $7.0 million in FY2004. Overall, net cash inﬂow for the year ended 31 December
2005 was $0.8 million. We intend to retain additional cash reserves for future projects and
overseas expansion.

Healthy Order Book
We have posted encouraging growth in new awards and our order book, while remaining fully
committed to selectivity and ﬁnancial discipline that is fundamental to our business strategy. Our
order book size remained strong at $135 million.

Updates on Overseas Ventures
After intensive market survey and research, we incorporated our ﬁrst overseas subsidiary
company known as OKP (CNMI) Corporation (“OKPCNMI”) in Saipan, Commonwealth of the
Northern Mariana Islands, stretching northwards from Guam, in June 2005. Being one of
the 14 tropical islands in the Western Paciﬁc, we see a demand for construction expertise in
airport infrastructure and an absence of keen competition in the Micronesian region.
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Building On Our Strengths
While we believe on remaining focused on what we do best — Road & Building Construction
and Road Maintenance, we have moved to expand our horizons advancing our services and
leveraging on our strengths.
• New Project Awarded to OKPCNMI in Saipan
Our expansion into CNMI showed substantial results in 2005. Unrivalled choice and our
established track record and expertise had landed us a contract with The Commonwealth
Ports Authority, for a project - Rota International Airport Runway 09/27 Extension Phase 1,
worth US$8.7 million or S$14.3 million in October 2005.
Funded by the Commonwealth Ports Authority and U.S. Federal Aviation
Administration, the project in general consists of the extension of existing
runway at the Rota International Airport by 1,000 feet, construction of
turnaround pads at both ends of the runway, airﬁeld lightings and other
related earth works. Commenced on 16 January 2006, this project is
scheduled to be completed by 10 January 2007. We expect the revenue
from this project to be recognised in FY2006 and FY2007.
This is an encouraging sign for us. We believe this will open the gates for
us to enter the Micronesian region.
Photo taken at the GroundBreaking Ceremony at the Rota
International Airport on 27
October 2005

• First Private Sector Contract in Gas & Oil Industry
Our Group has been constantly looking for business opportunities in an effort to move
beyond our core Road & Building Construction and Road Maintenance operations. In
February 2006, we were awarded our ﬁrst private sector project that serves the oil &
gas industry by Rotary Engineering Limited, a Singapore Mainboard listed company. Worth
approximately $50 million, this contract is for Civil and Related Works for Tank Foundation
and other Structures at the land next to Meranti Crescent – MK No. 34 at Jurong Island
and is expected to be completed on 30 April 2007.

Outlook
According to the Building and Construction Authority (“BCA”), the value of local construction
contracts awarded in FY2005 rose by almost 10% to $11.3 billion. The construction demand
for FY2006 is expected to grow further to hit the range between $12 billion and $13.5
billion. In addition, BCA has revised its projected annual construction demand for the next ﬁve
years to between $13 to $15 billion. This is indeed good news for the construction industry.
However, we believe that the market size will continue to pose a challenge to our Group.
In view of the maturing construction industry in Singapore, we have been pursuing opportunities
to regionalise our core business. Besides expanding our business into emerging markets
such as CNMI, we will also diversify into the different private sector industries and broaden
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our scope of work to hone our competitive edge. Such specialist civil engineering activities
include vehicular tunnels, rail systems, sewerage treatment plants, deep tunnel sewerage
system and conventional housing development.
As the proverbial saying goes, people who enjoy what they do invariably do it well. Our strong
fundamentals, sound management capabilities and enhanced expertise are set to optimise
our resources and build on the foundations that we have laid over the years. With a solid
balance sheet and strong focus on core business to build on, we know we can continue to
grow even in a slower growth and volatile economy.

Best Annual Report Award
OKP remained committed to fulﬁlling our duties to our valued shareholders. In March 2006,
we triumphed over 200 companies listed on the SESDAQ of the Singapore Exchange to bag
the Best Annual Report Award – Gold, at the Inaugural Singapore Corporate Awards.
We strongly believe that we have to be consistent and ensure timely disclosure of information
to all stakeholders regardless of the performance of our company. The annual report has
been regarded as one of the key tools in our investor relations programme which enables
us to communicate our company’s performance and strategies with transparency, and
presenting them in a meaningful and user-friendly way.

A Note of Appreciation
On behalf of the board and company, I would like to take the opportunity to convey our sincere
thanks to Mr Loo Choon Chaw who stepped down from his duties on 31 May 2005. As an
Independent Director, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of our Audit
Committee and Nominating Committee, Mr Loo has been a tremendous asset and a valued
resource throughout his three-year tenure. At the same time, we welcome Mr Nirumalan
s/o V Kanapathi Pillay, our new Independent Director who was appointed on 1 June 2005.
I would like to thank all our customers, suppliers and business associates for their conﬁdence
and support. Finally, the staff at OKP for their continued and invaluable contribution. It is
through their continued hard work, dedication and enthusiasm that the Group is able to
continue to deliver substantial value to shareholders.

Or Kim Peow, PBM
Group Chairman
27 March 2006
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Financial Highlights

FY2005

FY2004

FY2003

FY2002

FY2001

48,758
12,682
61,440

54,129
18,581
72,710

32,734
24,022
56,756

25,885
25,933
51,818

25,885
25,194
51,079

2,040

3,443

4,746

5,239

6,874

156
460
107
509
275

714
1,176
178
1,713
1,562

1,773
1,098
189
2,682
1,408

1,668
1,788
221
3,235
2,223

3,391
2,168
320
5,239
3,926

25,426
14,818
34,667
1,502
18,531
12,781
16,843

31,546
20,806
41,336
3,219
18,917
11,935
17,229

24,653
13,305
34,196
3,500
17,918
10,400
16,230

22,960
13,322
33,752
3,763
17,178
9,471
15,254

16,067
10,479
24,683
4,423
11,205
6,105
11,155

1.62
2.71

5.05
9.30

8.45
15.28

11.83
22.80

21.49
56.69

1.52
75.88
12.36

1.72
69.27
12.64

1.85
64.08
11.91

1.72
62.09
11.19

1.53
74.73
8.19

Leverage
Debts to equity ratio (times)
Interest cover (times)

0.08
5.73

0.17
10.60

0.20
15.19

0.22
15.64

0.39
17.37

Investors’ Ratio
Earnings per share (cents)
Gross dividend per share (cents)
Gross dividend yield (%)
Dividend cover (times)

0.20
n.a.
n.a.
n.a.

1.15
0.49
4.50
2.78

1.03
0.41
2.70
2.16

1.63
0.49
4.90
3.33

2.88
n.a.
n.a.
n.a.

381
161.2

398
182.7

387
146.7

409
126.7

346
147.6

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
$’000
Revenue - Road & Building Construction
Revenue - Road Maintenance
Total revenue
Earnings before Interest, Taxation,
Depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
Proﬁt before interest and taxation
- Road & Building Construction
- Road Maintenance
Finance costs
Proﬁt before taxation and minority interests
Proﬁt after taxation and minority interests

BALANCE SHEET
$’000
Current assets
Current liabilities
Total assets
Total borrowings
Shareholders’ equity
Cash and cash equivalents
Net tangible assets

FINANCIAL RATIOS
Proﬁtability
Return on assets (%)
Return on equity (%)
Liquidity
Current ratio (times)
Cash as a percentage of NTA (%)
Net tangible assets per share (cents)

Productivity
Number of employees
Revenue/employee ($’000)
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Financial Review

Overview
During the year in review, revenue for FY2005 was expected to be lower as compared
to FY2004 due to a lower recognition of revenue from projects. The one-time loss for
the second half of FY2005 was also inevitable as a result of an increase in project cost
giving rise to actual cost exceeding internal projections in some of our Group’s projects as
customers had requested for further extension of the completion periods.
Broadening Geographical Revenue Contribution
Our Group continues to seek viable expansions to diversify our income stream geographically.
In 2005, the Group incorporated a subsidiary in Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana
Islands, with a paid-up capital investment of $170,442 (USD100,003). This investment is
likely to contribute to our Group’s revenue for FY2006 and FY2007 as we were awarded a
Rota International Airport Runway 09/27 Extension – Phase 1 contract.
Critical Accounting Policies
Our Group’s critical accounting policies are presented on Page 63 of the Annual Report (under
Notes to the Financial Statement, Note no.2). Our Group has applied the same accounting
policies and methods of computation and the ﬁnancial statements for the current ﬁnancial
year compared with those of the audited ﬁnancial statements as at 31 December 2004.
During the ﬁnancial year, several new Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”) and revision to
FRS became effective. There will be some presentational differences, but in summary the
effect of the adoption of these new and revised FRS on the ﬁnancial statements of our Group
and of our Company did not result in any signiﬁcant changes in accounting policies.
Signiﬁcant Accounting Estimates and Judgments
Our Group’s signiﬁcant accounting estimates and judgments are presented on Page 64 of
the Annual Report (under Notes to the Financial Statements, Note 2(c)). Our Group has
made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

PROFITABILITY
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Revenue
Despite the competitive challenges in the year, our
Group managed to achieve yet another proﬁtable
year with revenue record of $61.4 million. Due
to lower recognition of revenue from both Road
& Building Construction and Road Maintenance,
which were, completed during the second half of
2005, the Group reported a slide of 15.5% in
revenue.
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PROFITABILITY (cont’d...)
Proﬁt Before Tax and Proﬁt After Tax
During the year in review, our Group’s proﬁt before
taxation declined by $1.2 million to $0.5 million. The
decrease was mainly attributed to lower proﬁt margin
generated from some of the existing projects and gross
proﬁt margin dropped from 7.5% for FY2004 to 6.0%
for FY2005. This was partly offset by a decrease
in administrative expenses and ﬁnance costs which
dropped by 3.0% and 39.9% respectively. Consequently,
proﬁt after taxation decreased by $1.3 million to $0.3
million in FY2005.
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SECTORAL PERFORMANCE
Revenue by Business Segment
Of the $61.4 million revenue, $48.8 million was
generated by the Road & Building Construction and the
remaining from the Road Maintenance.
Road & Building Construction
FY2005 revenue contribution from the Road & Building
Construction was 9.9% lower than FY2004 due to a
lower recognition of revenue from some of the existing
projects, which were substantially completed in FY2005.
These projects include:
•
•

Construction of 2nd South Cross Taxiway and
Associated Works, Singapore Changi Airport
Design and Widen Bukit Timah Expressway from
Kranji Expressway to Seletar

The decrease was however, partially offset by an
increase in revenue due to full year revenue recognition
from the Widening of Pan-Island Expressway from Kranji
Expressway to Jalan Ahmad Ibrahim.
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Road Maintenance
Road maintenance segment also reported a drop of
$6.0 million in revenue from $18.6 million to $12.6
million. This was due mainly to a smaller contribution
from Improvement to Old Roadside Drains in Serangoon
Gardens, Rosyth & Hillside, Tai Keng Gardens, Kembangan
Estate and Contract 25, in aggregate, contributed
approximately $0.5 million to the revenue for FY2005
as compared to $5.4 million for FY2004.
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SECTORAL PERFORMANCE (cont’d...)
Proﬁt Before Interest & Taxation By Business Segments
Road & Building Construction
The proﬁt before interest and taxation for this business
segment dropped by 71.4% due to lower proﬁt margins
from some existing projects. As a result of the extension
of completion periods, the Group incurred additional
costs, which affected proﬁtability. Additional costs such
labour cost and sub-contracting costs as a percentage of
revenue from the Road & Building Construction segment
increased from 9.76% and 43.27% in FY2004 to 11.36%
and 46.15% in FY2005 respectively.
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Road Maintenance
The proﬁt before interest and tax from the Road Maintenance segment declined by 58.3% from $1.2 million to $0.5
million due to increase in sub-contracting costs, which, as a percentage of revenue from the Road Maintenance
segment, increased from 29.06% in FY2004 to 37.17% in FY2005.

BALANCE SHEET
Shareholders’ Equity and Net Tangible Assets
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Shareholders’ equity decreased by $0.4 million
from $18.9 million as at 31 December 2004 to $18.5
million as at 31 December 2005. The decrease was
mainly due to lower revenue reserves relating to dividends
payout in FY2005.
The Group’s net tangible assets dropped to $17.2 million
from $16.8 in FY2005. The $0.4 million decrease was due
to lower proﬁt generated from operations in FY2005.
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FINANCIAL RATIOS – PROFITABILITY
Return on Assets & Equity
Return on Equity and Return on Assets dipped to 2.71%
and 1.62% respectively due to lower proﬁt generated.
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FINANCIAL RATIOS – LIQUIDITY / EFFICIENCY
Ó

Current Ratio

£°nx

Owing to tighter credit control and better working
capital management, current ratio improved from
1.52 times in FY2004 to 1.72 times in FY2005.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
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Our Group has a history of good cash generation
and this year was no exception. Our cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the ﬁnancial year increased
by 10.0% from $7.0 million in FY2004 to $7.7
million in FY2005. This was attributed to lower net
cash used in investing and ﬁnancing activities.
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Cash as a percentage of Net Tangible Assets
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Despite the drop in revenue, the Group’s cash as a
percentage of NTA increased by 12.6% to 45.83%
in FY2005.
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Net Tangible Assets per Share
As a result of lower revenue generated during
the ﬁnancial year, the Group’s net tangible assets
per share dipped from 12.64 cents in FY2004 to
12.36 cents FY2005.
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FINANCIAL RATIOS – LEVERAGE
Debt to Equity Ratio
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The Group’s debt to equity ratio decreased from
0.17 times in FY2004 to 0.08 times in FY2005.
The decrease was due to repayment of hire
purchase creditors and full settlement of bank loans
during FY2005.
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The Group’s interest cover decreased from 10.60
times in FY2004 to 5.73 times in FY2004 as a
result of lower proﬁt generated.
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FINANCIAL RATIO – PRODUCTIVITY
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Revenue/ employee
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Due to the lower revenue recorded for FY2005,
revenue generated by each employee decreased by
11.7% to $161,300 in FY2005.
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INVESTORS’ RATIO
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Earnings per Share
Earnings per share was reduced from 1.15 cents
in FY2004 to 0.20 cents in FY2005. The decrease
was mainly due to lower proﬁt generated during
the year.
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Corporate Liquidity and Cash Resources

FY2005
$’000

FY2004
$’000

FY2003
$’000

FY2002
$’000

4,060

4,183

3,156

4,352

Group Cash Flow Statement
Cash ﬂows from operating activities
Cash ﬂows from investing activities

(473)

(598)

(416)

(265)

Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities

(2,805)

(3,777)

(1,806)

296

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

782

(192)

934

4,383

Effects of exchange rate changes on balances held in
foreign currencies

(23)

(6)

-

-

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning year

6,966

7,164

9,471

5,088

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

7,725

6,966

7,164

9,471

Net cash inﬂow from operating activities in FY2005 remained at $4.1 million.Together with the opening cash and cash equivalents
balances, the cash from operating activities were used to fund the investing activities and repayments of bank loans.
Net cash outﬂow from investing activities of $0.5 million in FY2005 comprised mainly cash payments for plant & equipment.
The repayment of bank borrowings of $1.1 million was mianly from net cash generated from operating activities. Overall, net cash
inﬂow for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005 was $0.8 million.
Our Group is in healthy position and we will retain additional cash reserves in our Group for future projects and overseas
expansion.
FY2005
$’000

FY2004
$’000

FY2003
$’000

FY2002
$’000

Obligations under ﬁnance leases

566

835

744

786

Short term bank loans (secured)

-

1,100

-

-

Long term bank loans, current portion (secured)

-

-

140

140

566

1,935

884

926

Obligations under ﬁnance leases

936

1,284

890

971

Long term bank loans (secured)

-

-

1,726

1,866

936

1,284

2,616

2,837

1,502

3,219

3,500

3,763

Net Indebtedness
Current Portion of

Total Current Debt

Non-current Portion of

Total non-current debt

Total Debt

The decrease in debt amount from $3.2 million as at FY2004 to $1.5 million as at FY2005 was due to repayment of hire
purchase creditors and full repayment of bank loan in FY2005.
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Value Added Statement

FY2005
$’000

FY2004
$’000

FY2003
$’000

FY2002
$’000

Revenue
Less:Purchase of goods and services

61,440
(49,953)

72,710
(58,773)

56,756
(42,488)

51,818
(36,919)

Value added from operations

11,487

13,937

14,268

14,899

Other income
Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange
Share of losses of associated company

Total value added available for distribution

853
(23)
830

445
(6)
(16)
423

12,317

14,360
%

Distribution:

272
(4)
268

155
155

14,536

15,054

%

%

%

To employees
(1) Salaries and other staff costs

10,271

83

10,852

76

9,780

67

9,813

65

To government
(1) Corporate and property taxes

250

2

167

1

1,282

9

1,014

7

1

178
667
845

6

189
563
752

5

221
668
889

6

14

1,553
895
2,448

17

1,877
845
2,722

19

1,783
1,555
3,338
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To providers of capital
(1) Finance costs
(2) Dividends to shareholders

Balance Retained in the Business:
(1) Depreciation and amortisation
(2) Unappropriated proﬁts
(3) Minority interests

Non-Production Costs and Income:
(1) Provision for doubtful debts (trade)
Total value added

107
107

1,424
275
(10)
1,689

12,317

48
100

14,360

100

14,536

100

15,054

100

Productivity Analysis
Number of employees
Value added per employee ($’000)
Value added per dollar of employment cost
Value added per dollar of investment in ﬁxed
assets (before depreciation)
Value added per dollar of revenue

381
32
1.20
0.72

387
37
1.32
0.86

387
38
1.49
0.96

409
37
1.53
1.04

0.20

0.20

0.26

0.29

Total value-added created by the group in FY2005 amounted to $12.3 million (2004: $14.4 million).
In FY2005, about $10.3 million or 83% of the value-added was paid to employees in the form of salaries and wages. $0.3
million or 2% was paid to the government in the form of corporate and property taxes while $0.1 million or 1% was paid as
dividends and interest to ﬁnancial institution. Balance of $1.7 million was retained by the Group for its future growth.
In FY2004, about $10.9 million or 76% of the value-added was paid to employees in the form of salaries and wages. $0.2
million or 1% was paid to the government in the form of corporate and property taxes while $0.8 million or 6% was paid as
dividends and interest to ﬁnancial institution. Balance of $2.4 million was retained by the Group for its future growth.
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ON

WINGS
OF

OPPORTUNITY

While we believe on remaining focused
on what we do best — Road & Building
Construction and Road Maintenance,
we have moved to expand the horizons
where we can advance our services
and leverage on the strengths we have.
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Operational Review
Despite the continued doldrums in the construction industry, OKP secured approximately $19.5
million worth of new projects for the year under review. To enhance our long-term earning power
and growth potential as a regional player, we have been actively but prudently looking for viable
opportunities overseas. However, we remain very selective about the projects we undertake,
maintaining a sharp focus on risk management and proﬁtability.

Our Overseas Ventures
Year 2005 has been an eventful year for OKP. In June, we incorporated OKP (CNMI) Corporation
(“OKPCNMI”) in Saipan, Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, (“CNMI”) to handle the
Group’s infrastructure construction and building-related businesses in the CNMI and Micronesian
region. The incorporation of OKPCNMI also presents a strategic platform for OKP to expand our
business geographically and allows the Group to partake in the future growth activities in the CNMI
and open gates to developing places in the Micronesian region.
Later in December, we de-registered Anhui SIN-HK Management & Consultancy Company
Limited (“Anhui”), a dormant associated company of OKP Investments (China) Pte Ltd, from the
Commercial Bureau of Anhui Province, the People’s Republic of China. Anhui is 25% owned by
OKP Investments (China) Pte Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The de-registration
of Anhui is not expected to have any material effect on the earnings per share or net tangible
assets per share of the Company and our subsidiaries for the current ﬁnancial year. This allows
us to focus our resources onto new markets such as CNMI, which we believe will yield better
returns in the near future.

About the Commonwealth of Northern Mariana Islands

Saipan
Tinian
Korea

Rota
Rota

Japan

The Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CNMI) is a
commonwealth in political union with the United States of America.
Strategically located in the West Paciﬁc Ocean, it forms a chain of
14 islands that stretches over 375 miles north to south, with a land
area of 181 square miles. There are three major islands, namely
Saipan, Rota and Tinian but most live on Saipan, the capital city.

Guam
China

The Philippines

Australia

The Commonwealth of
Northern Mariana Islands

With a population of about 80,000, the economy is largely tourism
driven, especially from Japan, Korea and Taiwan. The CNMI also
beneﬁts from substantial subsidies and development assistance
from the federal government of the United States.
The development in the CNMI has not been evenly spread out
throughout the major islands of Saipan, Tinian and Rota. Each
requires basic infrastructure such as airport, medical facilities
but Rota and Tinian experienced little development to date. It is
observed that this may change with the development of casinos on
Tinian and a golf course on Rota.
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Our First Overseas Contract – Contract To Build Rota International Airport Runway
Backed by an established track record and expertise and experience in managing
airport-related projects in Singapore, we successfully won the tender for the Rota
International Airport Runway project by the Commonwealth Ports Authority. This
award is a testimony of our strong capabilities and the high quality of our works.

Rota International Airport

This 12-month project had commenced on 16 January 2006 and is expected to
be completed by 10 January 2007. It involves the extension of the existing runway
of the Rota International Airport by 1,000 feet, construction of turnaround pads
at both ends of the runway, airﬁeld lightings and other related earth works.
The Rota International Airport Runway contract will remain a key strategic focus
project for year 2006.
OKP’s operations are broadly divided into two segments: Road & Building
Construction and Road Maintenance.

Ground Breaking Ceremony at Rota
International Airport on 27 October 2005

Road & Building Construction
Road & Building Construction activities contributed to approximately $48.8 million
of our Group’s revenue in ﬁnancial year 2005.
Completed Road & Building Construction Projects
During the year in review, we have seen the successful completion and handling
over of more than ﬁve projects to our satisﬁed customers. As a result of our
clients’ request for the extension of completion periods, some of our Group’s
projects were extended.

Final Premix Surfacing, Reinstatement and
Ancillary Works at Tuas View, Phase 3

Right: Completion of the construction of 2nd
South Cross Taxiway and Associated Works,
Singapore Changi Airport
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Construction Project
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Customer

Date of
commencement

Date of
completion

Contract
Value
(S$’000)

LTA

November 2002

May 2005

21,570

October 2004

August 2005

9,627

1

Design and Widen Bukit Timah Expressway
from Kranji Expressway to Seletar Expressway

2

Design and Build Contract for Widening of
Runway Shoulders and Associated Works at
Singapore Changi Airport

3

Reconstruction and Expansion of Vehicular
Bridge at Ayer Rajah Expressway across Sungei
Pandan

LTA

November 2001

June 2005

9,227

4

Widening of Loyang Avenue from Loyang Way
to Changi Village

LTA

Auguest 2003

November 2004
(extended till
2005)

8,476

5

Widening of Choa Chu Kang Way from Choa
Chu Kang North 7 to Sungei Kadut Drive

LTA

October 2003

January 2005

3,787

6

Final Premix Surfacing, Reinstatement and
Ancillary Works at Tuas View, Phase 3

JTC

June 2004

June 2005

3,697

7

Proposed Parcellation plan and infrastructure
works comprising erection of Powergrid
substation 1 with ancillary MDF Building and
Powergrid Substation 2 and internal roads on
Lots 2155PT a& 2156PT MK at Tuas South
Avenue 3/8 URA Land Parcel 498

March 2004

December 2004
(extended till
2005)

2,900

8

Upgrading of Bridges at 4 Locations

LTA

November 2003

May 2005

2,647

9

Construction of Roads (Yishun Street 31)
Between Yishun Ring Road and Yishun Avenue 6

HDB

February 2005

July 2005

667

Proposed Road at Kranji Water Reclamation
Plant

PUB

September 2004

January 2005

547

10

L - R:
Widening of Pan-Island Expressway from
Kranji Expressway to Jalan Ahmad Ibrahim
Construction of Petir Road and Outlet Drain,
Road Repair and Re-Structuring of Senja
Road, Senja Link and Segar Road

CAAS

Tuas
Hi-Tech
Park Pte
Ltd
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Road & Building Construction Projects on hand (with contract value of over S$4,000,000)
We are currently working on six projects, of which ﬁve were secured in FY2005. Moving on
from the successful completion of the Tuas View Phase 3 contract, we were awarded another
contract, Final Premix Surfacing, Reinstatement and Ancillary Works at Tuas View, Phase 5, by
Jurong Town Corporation in 2005. The 18-month Contract, valued at $7,527,000, includes
the ﬁnal premix surfacing works, road kerb works, rigid pavement works, raising up of the
drain top slab, desilting of existing drains, reinstatement works, landscaping works and other
ancillary works. It is expected to be completed by January 2007.

Singapore
No.

Description of On-going Road & Building
Construction Project

Customer

Date of
commencement

Date of
completion

Contract
Value
(S$’000)

1

Civil and Related Works for Tank
Foundation and other Structures at the
land next to Meranti Crescent – MK No.
34 at Jurong Island

Rotary
Engineering
Limited

February 2006

April 2007

Approx.
50,000

2

The Construction of 2nd South Cross
Taxiway and Associated Works,
Singapore Changi Airport

July 2002

October 2004
(extended till
early 2006)

39,527

3

Widening of Pan-Island Expressway
from Kranji Expressway to Jalan Ahmad
Ibrahim

LTA

March 2004

March 2006

22,227

4

Final Premix Surfacing, Reinstatement and
Ancillary Works at Tuas View, Phase 5

JTC

July 2005

January 2007

7,527

5

Construction of Petir Road and Outlet
Drain, Road Repair and Re-Structuring of
Senja Road, Senja Link and Segar Road

HDB

February 2005

March 2006

4,237

Commonwealth
Ports Authority

January 2006

January 2007

CAAS

Overseas
Rota International Airport Runway
09/27 Extension – Phase 1

L - R:
Civil and Related Works for Tank Foundation and
other Structures at the land next to Meranti
Crescent – MK No. 34 at Jurong Island
Final Premix Surfacing, Reinstatement and Ancillary
Works at Tuas View, Phase 5

14,317
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Projects Awarded After FY2005
We kicked off FY2006 with our ﬁrst overseas project, Rota International Airport Runway
09/27 Extension – Phase 1. Valued at $14,317,050, this 12-month project had commenced
on 16 January 2006 and is expected to be completed by 10 January 2007.
In February 2006, we were awarded a contract worth approximately $50 million by Rotary
Engineering Limited, a Mainboard listed company. The contract is for Civil and Related Works
for Tank Foundation and other Structures at the land next to Meranti Crescent – MK No. 34 at
Jurong Island and is expected to be completed on 30 April 2007. This is also our ﬁrst private
sector project that serves the oil & gas industry.

Road Maintenance
Road maintenance generated revenue of $12.7 million for the year under review. We expect
ﬁerce competition to continue in view of the competitive road maintenance market. All road
maintenance projects are currently work in progress.
Road Maintenance Projects on Hand (with contract value of over S$3,000,000)
No.

Description of On-going Road Maintenance
Project

Customer

Date of
commencement

Date of
completion

Contract
Value
(S$’000)

1

Planned Maintenance of Roads in East &
West Sector for A Period of Two Years

LTA

January 2004

January 2006

13,967

2

Painting and Cleansing of Road Related
Facilities in East Sector for A Period of Two
Years

LTA

January 2004

January 2006

9,176

3

Term Contract for Trafﬁc Scheme for A
Period of Seven Months

LTA

September 2005

April 2006

4,950

4

Supply and Application of Protective Coating
to Existing Flyovers/Viaducts and Vehicular
Underpasses - Batch No 1

LTA

February 2006

August 2006

3,637

5

Improvement to Old Roadside Drains in
Tanjong Katong

PUB

August 2004

August 2006

3,237

Projects Awarded After FY2005
We entered FY2006 with two projects worth a total of $8.6 million.
We were recently awarded a contract, worth $3,637,000 by LTA. The
contract, RD155A - Supply and Application of Protective Coating to
Existing Flyovers/Viaducts and Vehicular Underpasses - Batch No 1,
had commenced on 1 February 2006 and is expected to be completed
by 31 August 2006.

Supply and Application of Protective Coating
to Existing Flyovers/Viaducts and Vehicular
Underpasses - Batch No 1
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Board of Directors

L - R:
Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM
Mr Or Toh Wat, PBM

Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM, 71
Group Chairman
Mr Or Kim Peow is the founding member of the Group and has been appointed as
Chairman of the Company since its incorporation on 15 February 2002. Mr Or was
last re-appointed as a Director at the 2004 Annual General Meeting held on 27 April
2005.
Mr Or has more than 31 years of experience in the infrastructure and civil engineering
business. He is responsible for overseeing the overall management and strategic
development of the Group. He started the Group with a single company 31 years ago
and was instrumental in developing and planning the business strategies of the Group,
having steered the Group through major changes in its history.
Mr Or is also actively involved in community activities. He is currently the Vice-Chairman
of Gek Poh Community Club Management Committee and the Patron of Potong Pasir
Citizens’ Consultative Committee.

Mr Or Toh Wat, PBM, 38
Group Managing Director
Mr Or Toh Wat has been appointed as Group Managing Director of the Group since its
incorporation on 15 February 2002.
Mr Or has more than 13 years of experience in the construction industry. He is responsible
for setting the Group’s corporate directions and strategies, and overseeing the day-to-day
management and business development of the Group. Mr Or is also actively involved in
community activities, and, in recognition of his contributions, he was awarded the Public
Service Award (PBM) in 2005. He is currently the Chairman of Potong Pasir Community
Club Management Committee, the Vice-Chairman of Jurong West Secondary School
Advisory Committee as well as the Patron of Boon Lay Community Centre Management
Committee.
Mr Or holds a Diploma in Mechanical Engineering from Ngee Ann Polytechnic and a
Bachelor of Applied Science (Construction Management) with Honours from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology.
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L - R:
Ms Ang Beng Tin
Mr Or Kiam Meng
Mr Oh Enc Nam

Ms Ang Beng Tin, 50
Executive Director
Ms Ang Beng Tin was appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 20 February
2002. She was last re-elected as a Director at the 2004 Annual General Meeting held on
27 April 2005.
Ms Ang had more than 12 years experience heading the human resource and administration
department of other companies prior to joining the Group in 1979. She is responsible for
managing employee relations, beneﬁt programmes and insurance claims.
Ms Ang holds GCE ‘O” Levels qualiﬁcations.

Mr Or Kiam Meng, 41
Executive Director
Mr Or Kiam Meng was appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 20 February
2002. He was last re-elected as a Director at the 2003 Annual General Meeting held on
27 April 2004.
Mr Or has more than 20 years of experience in the construction industry since he joined
the Group in 1985. He oversees the daily site management and operations of Or Kim Peow
Contractors (Private) Limited, one of the Group’s subsidiary companies. Mr Or is currently
the Patron of Anchorvale Community Centre Management Committee.
Mr Or holds a Diploma in Building from Singapore Polytechnic and a Certiﬁcate in Occupational
Safety & Health from Singapore Polytechnic.

Mr Oh Enc Nam, 50
Executive Director

Mr Oh Enc Nam was appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 20 February 2002.
He was last re-elected as a Director at the 2004 Annual General Meeting held on 27 April
2005.
Mr Oh has more than 27 years of experience in the construction industry since he joined the
Group in 1978. He is responsible for the day-to-day management and the overall operations
of Eng Lam Contractors Co. (Pte) Ltd, one of the Group’s subsidiary companies.
Mr Oh holds GCE ‘A” Levels qualiﬁcations.
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Dr Chen Seow Phun, John

Dr Chen Seow Phun, John, 51
Independent Director

Dr Chen Seow Phun, John was appointed as Independent Director of the Company on 25
June 2002 and currently serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Nominating Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He was last re-elected as
a Director at the 2002 Annual General Meeting held on 30 April 2003.
Dr Chen is presently the Managing Director of JCL Business Development Pte Ltd, a
business consultant and investment company, and the Executive Chairman of SAC Capital
Pte Ltd, a licensed corporate ﬁnance ﬁrm. Dr Chen also sits on the Board of a number of
publicly listed companies. He has been a Member of Parliament since September 1988.
From March 1997 to June 1999, he was the Minister of State for Communications.
From June 1999 to November 2001, he was the Minister of State for Communications
and Information Technology and Minister of State for National Development. Dr Chen has
been a Board Member of the Economic Development Board, the Housing & Development
Board, the Port of Singapore Authority and Singapore Power Ltd.
Dr Chen holds a PhD degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of Waterloo,
Canada.

List of present and past directorships, other
than those held in the Company, as at 31
December 2005 and the preceding 3 years:

Present Directorships
JCL Business Development Pte Ltd
Unigold Asia Limited
Thai Village Holdings Ltd
HYLYNX Pte Ltd
Hiap Seng Engineering Ltd
Hongguo International Holdings Limited
PSC Corporation Ltd
Education Solutions International Pte Ltd
Matex International Limited
SAC Capital Pte Ltd
(previously known as Sirius Asia Capital Pte Ltd)
SNF Corporation Ltd
Orient Marine Pte Ltd
Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd

Past Directorships
Singlights Pte Ltd
Red Chips Pte Ltd
Redchip Investment Pte Ltd
Cornell Education Group Pte Ltd
Intraco Limited
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L - R:
Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay
Mr Tan Boen Eng

Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay, 53
List of present and past
directorships, other than
those held in the Company,
as at 31 December 2005
and the preceding 3 years:

Independent Director

Present Directorships

Mr Pillay is the Managing Partner of Niru & Co, a law ﬁrm in Singapore. The ﬁrm has
a regional and international practice. Recently, it was in association with CMS Cameron
McKenna, a top tier law ﬁrm in the United Kingdom. Mr Pillay has been in legal practice
for more than 28 years specialising in insurance, reinsurance, shipping, libel and slander,
corporate, commercial and civil litigation. Mr Pillay qualiﬁed as a Barrister-at-Law (England
and Wales) in 1976 and was admitted by the Honourable Society of the Inner Temple.
He has been practicing as an Advocate and Solicitor of the Supreme Court of Singapore
since 1978 and was admitted as a Barrister and Solicitor of the Supreme Court of
Victoria, Australia, in 1990.

Nil

Past Directorships
Nil

Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay was appointed as an independent director of the
Company on 1 June 2005 and currently serves as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nominating Committee.

Mr Pillay holds a LLM degree from the University of Melbourne, Australia and a LLM (with
Distinction) degree from the Nottingham Trent University, United Kingdom. He is also a
Fellow of both the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, United Kingdom and the Singapore
Institute of Arbitrators. He is also an Adjunct Associate Professor at the Faculty of
Engineering, National University of Singapore.

Mr Tan Boen Eng, 73
List of present and past
directorships, other than
those held in the Company,
as at 31 December 2005
and the preceding 3 years:

Present Directorships
AsiaPrime Associates Pte Ltd
Association of Taxation
Technicians (S) Limited
Certiﬁed Accounting
Technicians (Singapore) Ltd.
TEE International Limited

Past Directorships
Association of Accounting
Technicians Singapore Ltd
(Struck off)
AsiaMedic Limited
Healthwho.com Pte Ltd
ICPAS Training Centre Pte Ltd
(Struck off)
QMC Management
Consultants Pte Ltd
Sin Chew Realty Private
Limited
STL Management Services
Pte Ltd
Teamwork International
Consultants Ltd

Independent Director
Mr Tan Boen Eng was appointed as an independent director of the Company on 25 June
2002 and currently serves as Chairman of the Nominating Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He was last re-appointed as a Director
at the 2004 Annual General Meeting held on 27 April 2005.
Mr Tan has extensive experience in both the public and private sectors. He has held and
is currently holding directorships in several listed and unlisted companies from various
industries. Mr Tan has been the President of the Institute of Certiﬁed Public Accountants
of Singapore since 1995. He was a member of the Nanyang Business School Advisory
Committee, Nanyang Technological University and also a member of the Accounting and
Corporate Regulatory Authority. He has previously held the positions of Senior Deputy
Commissioner of the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore and was a Director of
Singapore Pools Pte Ltd. He also served as a Chairman of the Securities Industries
Council and was a Member of the Singapore Sports Council.
Mr Tan holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics (Honours) from the University of
Malaya in Singapore. He is also a Fellow of the Institute of Certiﬁed Public Accountants
of Singapore and CPA Australia. He received the Public Administration Medal (Silver) in
1975.
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Key Management

Ms Ong Wei Wei

Mr Or Yew Whatt

Group Financial Controller
OKP Holdings Limited

Project Director
Eng Lam Contractors Co (Pte) Ltd

Ms Ong Wei Wei joined the Group in 2002 and oversees the
Group’s ﬁnance and corporate functions covering ﬁnancial
reporting, treasury, tax, legal and corporate secretarial and
investor relations. Prior to joining the Group, she was a
corporate advisory manager with an accounting ﬁrm.

Mr Or Yew Whatt joined the Group in 1989. He is currently
the Project Director of Eng Lam Contractors Co. (Pte) Ltd,
one of the Group’s subsidiary companies. He is responsible
for the supervision of projects, resolving site issues and is
involved in project tendering processes. He has more than
16 years of experience in the construction industry.

Ms Ong is a member of the Institute of Certiﬁed Public
Accountants of Singapore, the Association of Chartered
Certiﬁed Accountants (United Kingdom), Institute of Internal
Auditors, Inc. (Singapore Chapter) and Singapore Institute
of Directors.

Mr Or holds a Certiﬁcate in Pavement Construction and
Maintenance from the Building and Construction Authority.

Mr Oh Kim Poy
Mr Goh Theng Kwee
General Manager, Projects
OKP Holdings Limited
Mr Goh Theng Kwee joined the Group in 2005 and is
responsible for managing and overseeing of the Group’s
projects. Mr Goh brought with him more than 30 years of
experience in the construction industry. He was a general
project manager with Hock Lian Seng Infrastructure Pte
Ltd before joining the Group.

Operations Director
Eng Lam Contractors Co (Pte) Ltd
Mr Oh Kim Poy joined the Group in 1977. He is currently the
Operations Director of Eng Lam Contractors Co. (Pte) Ltd,
one of the Group’s subsidiary companies. He is responsible
for supervising and the monitoring of projects. Mr Oh
has more than 32 years of experience in the construction
industry.

Mr Ang Peng Seong
Mr Goh holds a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering
(Honours) degree from the Polytechnic of Central London
and a Master of Science in Construction Engineering from
the National University of Singapore.

Operations Manager
Or Kim Peow Contractors (Private) Limited
Mr Ang Peng Seng joined the Group in 2002. He is
currently the Operations Manager of Or Kim Peow
Contractors (Private) Limited, one of the Group’s subsidiary
companies.
He is responsible for resources and
construction management. Mr Ang has more than 24
years of experience in the construction industry. Mr Ang
was a site manager with Chew Eu Hock Construction Co.
Private Limited before joining the Group.
Mr Ang has received formal education up to secondary
three level.
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Information on Employees

Investing in Our People
As with any construction businesses, the quality and skills of our people is critical to our continued success. The Group
regards our workforce as a business asset and invests in each employee.

Employee health and safety
We are committed to maintaining our high quality
standards, enhancing productivity and improving
safety at our workplace. Seminars on health and
safety are held regularly to impart safety knowledge
to our employees at all levels, especially the new
employees.
To minimise the exposure to risks at construction
sites, proper safety knowledge and management
have been inculcated through safety and environment
control ofﬁcers, site engineers and site supervisors.
Besides the project management workshop using
Primavera software, we have also introduced
training courses such as the Construction Safety
Course, and in Hydraulic Excavator Operation,
Pavement Slab and Curb Construction and Steel
Reinforcement works.

Recruitment and Training
We continue to invest in the recruitment and
training of skilled staff for the future. At OKP, we
institute regular training programmes for our
foreign workforce as well as various trainings and
courses for our staff at all levels.
All our staff have to undergo “ISO 9001 Awareness”,
“ISO 14001 Environmental Management” and
“OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and Safety”
trainings to enhance their productivity and safety
knowledge.

Functional
Management & Supervisory (M&S)
~ Local
~ Foreign
Finance & Administration (F&A)
~ Local
~ Foreign
Site Operations (S&O)
~ Local
~ Foreign

Years of Service
More than 15 years
10 years to 14 years
6 years to 9 years
3 years to 5 years
Less than 3 years

Educational Qualiﬁcation
Degree & above
Diploma & equivalent
“O” & “A” Level & Equivalent
Trade Certiﬁcate & Equivalent
Secondary Level & lower

FY2005

FY2004

12%
0%

11%
2%

2%
0%

2%
0%

9%
77%
100%

11%
74%
100%

2%
3%
21%
27%
47%
100%

2%
1%
19%
32%
46%
100%

11%
2%
5%
79%
3%
100%

13%
3%
8%
71%
5%
100%

Welfare
Footnote:

The well being of our staff is of utmost importance
and our Human Resource Department ensures we
are fully compliant with all workplace regulations.

(1)
(2)
(3)

M&S - Directors, FC, managers, engineers and QS
F&A - Adm clerks and accounts executives
S&O - Site supervisors, site clerks, site inspectors, foreman, machine
operatiors, general workers & drivers
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Organisation Chart

Shareholders

Board Of Directors

Audit Committee

Remunerating Committee

Nominating Committee

Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM
Group Chairman

Mr Or Toh Wat, PBM
Group Managing Director

Ms Ang Beng Tin

Mr Or Kiam Meng

Mr Oh Enc Nam

Executive Director
Administration/HR

Executive Director
Site Management of OKPC

Executive Director
Management & Operations of EL

Ms Ong Wei Wei

Mr Goh Theng Kwee

Mr Or Yew Whatt

Mr Oh Kim Poy

Group Financial Controller
Financial reporting/
treasury/tax/legal/
corporate secretarial/
investor relations

General Manager,
Projects
Project Management of
OKPC & EL

Project Director
Project Management
of EL

Operations Director
Operations Control
of EL
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Group Structure

Singapore

CNMI

OKP Holdings Limited
Company Reg No: 200201165G

100%

Or Kim Peow Contractors (Private) Limited
Company Reg No: 197701891R

100%

Eng Lam Contractors Co (Pte) Ltd
Company Reg No: 199206337G

100%

OKP Technical Management Pte Ltd
Company Reg No: 200202135K

100%

OKP Investments (China) Pte Ltd
Company Reg No: 200307117G

96%

OKP (CNMI) Corporation
Tax Reference No: 98-0457779
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Mr Sellakumaran s/o Sellamuthoo LL.B (Hons)
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H a l f - Ye a r l y R e s u l t s

First Half

First Half

$’000

Second Half

Second Half

$’000

Total
$’000

Revenue
2005

36,788

60%

24,652

40%

61,440

2004

36,123

50%

36,587

50%

72,710

2005

1,251

246%

(742)

-146%

509

2004 (restated)

1,757

103%

(45)

-3%

1,712

932

339%

(657)

-239%

275

1,370

88%

192

12%

1,562

2005

0.68

340%

(0.48)

-240%

0.20

2004

1.01

88%

0.14

12%

1.15

Proﬁt before taxation

Proﬁt after taxation and minority interest
2005
2004 (restated)

Earnings per share (cents)

Revenue for second half of 2005 decreased by $12.1 million compared to ﬁrst half due mainly lower recognition of
revenue from both Road & Building Construction and Road Maintenance projects.
The net loss for the second half of 2005 was due to additional costs as a result of the extension of completion periods,
giving rise to actual cost exceeding internal projections in some of our Group’s projects.
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Investor Relations Activities

With a shareholder base of approximately 1,500, our Group has regarded Investor Relations as an integral component of
our management function. Our Group is constantly searching for ways to improve our corporate transparency and openness.
The integrity and the trust of our stakeholders, customers, shareholders, suppliers and employees are paramount to the
continued success of our business.

Corporate Transparency

• Annual Report

Investor relations continue to be an important part of
our Group’s commitment to high standards of corporate
governance. We ﬁrmly believe in the sharing of timely and
comprehensive information allows shareholders, analysts
and investors to better assess and understand our Group’s
performance.

We placed great importance on our annual report as it is
one of the key tools in our investor relations programme.
It enables us to communicate our company’s performance
and strategies with transparency, and presenting them
in a meaningful and user-friendly way. The contents have
also been revised and expanded to include more in-depth
information.

Good Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors consists of eight directors, three
of whom are independent directors as recommended
by the Code of Corporate Governance. The balance of
Independent and non-independent directors has served our
Group well. Their participation in the Remuneration, Audit
and Nominating Committees serves as an assurance to our
shareholders’ interests.

Communications with Shareholders
• Corporate Announcements / News Releases
All information on our Group’s new initiatives are ﬁrst
disseminated via SGXNET, which is subsequently made
available on our corporate website http://www.okph.com

Our efforts has been recognised when our Annual Report
2005 clinched the Best Annual Report Award – Gold
award under the SGX SESDAQ Companies category at the
Inaugural Singapore Corporate Awards. Organised by The
Business Times, the Annual Report Award (ARA) aims to
give recognition to annual reports that shows excellent
standard of corporate disclosure beyond the minimum
regulatory requirements that are in tandem with the
needs of investors and other stakeholders. This award is
a reﬂection of our Group’s commitment to high standards
of disclosure.
Our annual report is issued well within the mandatory
period and is also made available on our corporate website.
Besides allowing the overseas investors and shareholders
to have access to the annual report in time, it also makes
the annual report available to potential investors and public
who would like to know more about OKP.

During the year, we issued half-year and full-year ﬁnancial
results promptly within the mandatory reporting period. In
addition to publishing through the SGXNET, news releases
are issued to the media and also placed on our corporate
website. We also posted company developments and
successful new project tenders on our corporate website
so that the media and public can be kept abreast of our
corporate developments.

Our corporate website gives quick access to ﬁnancial and
corporate information on our Group. Investors can download
our current and previous ﬁnancial results, announcements
and press releases from our corporate website.

• Analysts & Media Brieﬁngs

• Annual General Meetings (AGMs)

We have webcasted the full year results video presentation
by our Group Managing Director and made it available to
the public and all shareholders via our Group’s corporate
website.

At AGMs, we strongly encourage shareholders to share
their views and to raise any issues that require clariﬁcations
regarding any aspect of our Group.

During the year, we have also met up with some individual
analysts, fund managers and shareholders. These sessions
helped to further clarify the business directions and growth
strategy of our Group.

• OKP’s Corporate Website

We view these meetings as excellent opportunities to
communicate with our shareholders and maximise their
understanding on our Group’s operations and strategies
going forward.
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Risk Assessment and Management

The Group is exposed to a number of possible risks that may arise from economic, business, market and ﬁnancial
factors and developments and which may have an adverse impact on our future performance. The Group has set
up objectives to manage the risks that arise from the normal course of our operations. The signiﬁcant risks are
summarised below:

Review of Business Environment
According to the Building and Construction Authority of
Singapore, the construction sector outlook appears brighter
in 2006 as the projected demand is expected to be at
between $12 billion and $13.5 billion. Although this is a
signiﬁcant improvement over the $10 billion in the last two
years, this is much lower than the historical peak of $24
billion in 1997.
The total value of construction contracts awarded last
year increased by almost 10% to $11.3 billion, with the
private sector being the main impetus for growth. While the
private sector construction demand continues to be strong,
the public sector demand is set to surpass the previous
year in view of an expected increase in institutional and civil
engineering projects.
As our operations are mainly based in Singapore, we expect
the market size to continue to pose a challenge for us.
In addition, the keen competition that prevails in the local
construction industry also means that we have to deal with
margin erosions due to low pricing strategies adopted by
local players. We have traditionally tendered for government
projects but we have also diversiﬁed into the private sector.
We believe we will not be intimidated by the situation as
we are always looking for viable business opportunities
beyond our traditional revenue streams such as overseas
expansions.
Along with the recovery of the construction industry, we also
noted some emerging trends in the construction demand,
which will bring in new challenges. As construction spending
over the next few years will be mainly boosted by mega
commercial developments, such as the Business Financial
Centre, Integrated Resorts, the rejuvenation of Orchard
Road and other highly specialised and complex process
engineering projects, we must also upgrade our capabilities
and knowledge in managing such projects.
OKP will continue to position ourselves as the ﬁrst and
preferred choice of contractor for transport infrastructure
and civil engineering projects in Singapore and the region.

Industry Speciﬁc
1. Subject to intense competition in securing new projects
Our business is mainly project-based. These projects are
generally secured through a tender process whereby the
contract is usually awarded to the most competitive bidder.
As such, our ﬁnancial performance is dependent on our ability
to secure new projects. Due to the nature of our business,
the number and value of the projects that we are able to
secure ﬂuctuates from year to year. There is no assurance
that we will continue to be able to secure new projects that
are proﬁtable. If we are unable to secure new projects, our

ﬁnancial performance will be adversely affected. In addition,
as we face intense competition in the tender process, we
may be forced to lower our tender prices in order to secure
the projects, and this will affect our proﬁt margins.
However, our Group believes that with our expertise
and experience in road & building construction and road
maintenance, we are able to tender competitively, primarily
for government projects. Our long operating history has
also demonstrated our ability to steer through the various
economic cycles.
2. Dependency on public sector clientele
Our Group is primarily engaged in public sector civil
engineering, which has increased our dependency on public
sector clientele such as the Land Transport Authority and
Public Utilities Board and Jurong Town Corporation. We are
conﬁdent that with our track record, we have established
ourselves as a reputable and successful Group in the
civil engineering construction industry, engaging in road
construction and road maintenance projects for government
bodies. With our expertise and experience, we are capable of
designing, planning and executing projects in a cost effective
manner, while maintaining a high quality standard of work.
As our clientele are primarily from the public sectors, this
reduces the uncertainties over the timeliness of collection
of trade receivables.
We have also diversiﬁed into the private sector to reduce
our dependency on public sector. In early 2006, we secured
our ﬁrst private sector contract worth approximately $50
million with Rotary Engineering Limited, a Mainboard listed
company in Singapore.
3. Subject to price ﬂuctuations of construction materials
and changes in government regulations
We are subject to price ﬂuctuations in construction
materials used for our operations. The main construction
materials used in our projects are cement, ready-mix
concrete, asphalts, reinforced steel bars and granite. We
constantly strive to source for the most competitive pricing
from our suppliers for the construction materials required
and try to lock in the prices of the construction material
if possible. In view of the competitive industry that we are
in, we may not be able to pass on any increase in cost of
these construction materials to our customers. Therefore,
in the event that we are unable to pass on all or part of an
increase in construction materials to our customers, our
proﬁtability may be adversely affected.
In addition, any change in government regulations in the
course of a project, in particular, increasing controls over
worksite safety, could result in our Group incurring additional
costs to comply with the new regulations and thus this
may also have an adverse effect on our project costs and
ﬁnancial performance.
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4. Subject to the general risks associated with doing
business outside Singapore
We currently have operations in Rota, the Commonwealth
of the Northern Mariana Islands. We may expand into other
countries in the region where we see business potential
as part of our growth plans. There are risks inherent in
doing business overseas, such as unexpected changes
in regulatory requirements, difﬁculties in stafﬁng and
managing foreign operations, social and political instability,
ﬂuctuations in currency exchange rates, potentially adverse
tax consequences, legal uncertainty, tariffs and other trade
barriers, variable and unexpected changes in local law
and barriers to the repatriation of capital or proﬁts, any
of which could materially affect our overseas operations
and consequently, our business, results of operations and
ﬁnancial condition.

intensive. The use of foreign workers is viewed as a
necessary temporary measure to avoid shortages, which
could greatly impede the nation’s economic development.
As it is highly unlikely that local supply of construction
workers is going to increase, we rely heavily on skilled and
unskilled foreign workers for our projects. The supply of
foreign workers is further subject to the policies imposed by
the Ministry of Manpower and the foreign affairs policies of
the countries in which these foreign workers are domiciled.
We are susceptible to any sudden withdrawal of the supply
of foreign workers and any increase in foreign workers’
levies. This will have negative impact on our earnings
during that period. Our Group believes in making efforts to
derive optimum beneﬁt from those employed, for example,
by enhancing their quality through training as well as skill
upgrading.
8. Regulated by Building and Construction Authority (“BCA”)

Our Group will continue to adopt a prudent and disciplined
approach to assess all business opportunities so as to
reduce risks in both local and overseas operations.

Company Speciﬁc
5. Exposure to liability claims and disputes
Our Group is exposed to claims against defective
workmanship, non-compliance with contract speciﬁcations
or disputes over variations. Should our Group be unable to
complete the project within a stipulated time, we may be
held liable for liquidated damages. In such circumstances,
ﬁnancial compensation may be required to be made to our
customers. Our Group continues to spend considerable
effort in ensuring our projects are well managed with high
quality standards and provides our employees with the
relevant trainings, on a regular basis, to uphold the quality
of all projects. We have no history of any signiﬁcant claim
made by our customers nor face any material disputes over
the last three ﬁnancial years.

We are guided and regulated by BCA. The BCA grading is
stipulated in the BCA Contractors Registry that functions
as an administrative body for tendering public sector
construction projects. There are ﬁve major groups of
registration workheads, namely Construction Workheads,
Construction Related Workheads, Mechanical & Electrical
Workheads, Supply Workheads and Maintenance
Workheads. Within each workhead, there are ﬁnancial
gradings, which determine a contractor’s tender capacity.
We are currently not aware of any existing circumstances
which may lead to companies within our Group losing their
grading status. As our projects are secured through open
tenders, an increase in the number of qualiﬁed competitors
would increase competition and lower the proﬁt margin for
projects. Our revenue and proﬁtability may be reduced as
competition intensiﬁes. In the event that the status cannot
be maintained, our Group will not be able to tender for
projects of stipulated contract values on the Contractors
Registration System (CRS). This could have an adverse
impact on the results of our operations if we are unable to
make up for the loss of larger projects with more projects
of lower contract values.

6. Exposure to cost overruns
9. Excessive warranty claims
In the course of our operations, we may face a cost overrun
where our Group has underestimated the costs involved or
duration of a project, or due to unforeseeable circumstances
such as adverse ground conditions, unfavorable weather
constraints and the issue of any instruction by our clients for
a variation order. Cost control measurement is carried out
at various stages to ensure that the projects are kept well
within budget. Continuous monitoring and quality assurance
are also performed to ensure project management risk
is mitigated. Our Group believes that with our project
management expertise, we are able to effectively manage
the costs related to each tendered project. However, in the
event when customers request for further extension of the
completion periods, we will incur additional costs as actual
cost exceeds internal projections.
7. Expose to labour shortages and are dependent on foreign
workers
The construction industry is still currently very labour

We provide limited warranty for our construction projects
for a standard period of up to 10 years. The limited
warranty covers defects and any premature wear and
tear of the materials used in the projects. Rectiﬁcation
and repair works to be carried out by us that are covered
under warranty would not be chargeable to the customers.
Excessive warranty claims for rectiﬁcation and repair works
will have an adverse effect on our ﬁnancial performance.
With our strong focus on quality and workmanship, we have
not experienced signiﬁcant warranty claims for the past
three ﬁnancial years.
10. Financial Risk Management
The Group is exposed to a variety of ﬁnancial risks, namely
credit, interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks.
The identiﬁcation of management of such risks are outlined
on Page 87 of the Annual Report (under the Notes to the
Financial Statements).
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Corporate Governance Report

OKP Holdings Limited (“the Company”) continues to be committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance to
promote corporate transparency, and protect and enhance shareholder value. It has adopted a framework of corporate
governance policies and practices in line with the principles and best practices set out in the Code of Corporate Governance
(“Code”).
The Company’s corporate governance policy and practices on each of the principles of the Code are outlined in the following
sections, and deviations from the Code are explained. The Company has complied with the requirements of the Code as well
as the Singapore Security Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) Listing Manual requirements where appropriate.

1.

BOARD MATTERS
The Board’s Conduct of its Affairs
Principle 1:

Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the company.

Our Policy and Practices:
The Board is made up of more than one-third non-executive Directors, who are independent of Management, and who
have the right core competencies and diversity of experience to enable them, in their collective wisdom, to contribute
effectively to the Company. Every Director is expected, in the course of carrying out his duties, to act in good faith, and
to provide insights to and consider at all times, the interests of the Company.
The Board oversees the management of the Company. It focuses on strategies and policies, with particular attention
on growth and ﬁnancial performance. It delegates the formulation of business policies and day-to-day management to
the Executive Directors.
The principal functions of the Board, apart from its statutory responsibilities, are:
•
•
•
•
•

•

Reviewing and approving the corporate policies, strategies, budgets and ﬁnancial plans of the Company.
Monitoring ﬁnancial performance, including approval of the full-year and half-year ﬁnancial reports of the
Company.
Approving major investment and funding decisions.
Reviewing the process of evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk management, ﬁnancial reporting and
compliance.
Overseeing the business and affairs of the Company, establishing, together with the Management, the strategies
and ﬁnancial objectives to be implemented by the Management and monitoring the performance of the
Management.
Assuming responsibilities for corporate governance.

Presently, the Board comprises of eight Directors of whom three are independent Directors. The Board comprises
businessmen and professionals with ﬁnancial, accounting and legal backgrounds. Proﬁles of the Directors are found
on pages 26 to 28 of this annual report.
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The Board met twice in FY2005. Telephonic attendance and conference via audio communication at Board meetings
are allowed under Article 120(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association. The attendances of the Directors at Board
Meetings are set out below:<-----------––---–– Board Committees ----––------------>
Board/Committees

Board

Audit

Remuneration

Nominating

No of meetings held

2

2

1

1

Name of Directors
Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM
Mr Or Toh Wat, PBM
Ms Ang Beng Tin
Mr Or Kiam Meng
Mr Oh Enc Nam
Dr Chen Seow Phun, John
Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay
Mr Loo Choon Chiaw (2)
Mr Tan Boen Eng

Number of Meetings attended

(1)

2
2
2
2
2
2
1
1
2

2
2
2
2
2
2
1
1
2

1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1

Notes:
(1)

Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 1 June 2005.

(2)

Mr Loo Choon Chiaw stepped down as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 31 May 2005.

We believe that contributions from each Director can be reﬂected in ways other than the reporting of attendances of
each Director at Board and/or Board Committee meetings. A Director would have been appointed on the strength of
his or her calibre, experience and stature, and his or her potential to contribute to the proper guidance of the Group
and its businesses.
To focus on a Director’s attendance at formal meetings alone may lead to a narrow view of a Director’s contribution. It
may also not do justice to his or her contribution which can be in many different forms, including Management’s access
to him or her for guidance or exchange of views outside the formal environment of Board meetings. In addition, he or
she may initiate relationships strategic to the interests of the Group.
The Company has adopted internal guidelines setting forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Under the
guidelines, all new investments, any increase in investment in the Group’s businesses, the Company’s subsidiary
companies, and any divestments by any of the Group’s companies, and all commitments to term loans and lines of
credit from banks and ﬁnancial institutions by the Company require the approval of the Board.
Changes to regulations and accounting standards are monitored closely by Management. To keep pace with regulatory
changes, where these changes have an important bearing on the Company’s or Directors’ disclosure obligations,
Directors are briefed at Board meetings.
Every Executive Director receives appropriate training to develop individual skills in order to discharge his or her duties.
The Group also provides extensive information about its history, mission and values to the Directors. The Directors
may, at any time, visit the Group’s construction sites in order to gain a better understanding of business operations.
There are also update sessions to inform the Directors on new legislation and/or regulations which are relevant to the
Group.
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Newly-appointed Directors are briefed on the business and organisation structure of the Group and its strategic
directions.
The matrix of Board members’ participation on the various Board Committees is as follows:

Board Composition
Audit
Remuneration
Nominating
and Committees
Committee
Committee
Committee
_____________________________________________________________________________________
Board Members
Dr Chen Seow Phun, John
Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay
Mr Tan Boen Eng

Chairman
Member
Member

Member
Chairman
Member

Member
Member
Chairman

Board Composition and Balance
Principle 2:

There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise objective
judgement on corporate affairs independently, in particular, from Management. No individual or small
group of individuals should be allowed to dominate the Board’s decision-making.

Our Policy and Practices:
Currently, the Board consists of eight Directors of whom three are considered independent(1) by the Nominating
Committee (“NC”). There is a strong independent element on the Board, with independent Directors constituting more
than one-third of the Board. This enables Management to beneﬁt from their external, diverse and objective perspectives
on issues that are brought before the Board. It also allows the Board to interact and work with Management through
a constructive exchange of ideas and views to shape the strategic process.
The independence of each Director is reviewed by the NC on an annual basis. The NC adopts the Code’s deﬁnition of
what constitutes an independent Director in its review. One of the Directors, Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay is
the Managing Partner of Niru & Co (“N&C”) which provides legal and professional services to the Group. The NC is of
the view that the business relationship with N&C will not interfere with the exercise of independent judgement by Mr
Pillay in his role as an independent Director as matters involving the Group are usually handled by the other partners
of N&C.
The Board has examined its size and is of the view that it is an appropriate size for effective decision-making, taking
into account the scope and nature of the operations of the Company. The NC is of the view that no individual or small
group of individuals dominate the Board’s decision-making process.
The NC is of the view that the current Board comprises persons who as a group provide competencies required for
the Board to be effective.

Note:
(1)
According to the Code, an independent Director is deﬁned as one who has no relationship with the Company, its related companies or its
ofﬁcers that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the Director’s independent business judgement
with a view to the best interests of the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
Principle 3:

There should be a clear division of responsibilities at the top of the company – the working of the Board
and the executive responsibility of the company’s business – which will ensure a balance of power and
authority, such that no one individual represents a considerable concentration of power.

Our Policy and Practices:
The Company believes that a distinctive separation of responsibilities between the Group Chairman and the Group
Managing Director (“Group MD”) will ensure an appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and greater
capacity of the Board for independent decision-making. The posts of Group Chairman and Group MD are held by Mr Or
Kim Peow, PBM and Mr Or Toh Wat, PBM, respectively. Mr Or Toh Wat, PBM, is the son of Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM.
Both are Executive Directors.
As Group Chairman, Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM, is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall management and
strategic development of the Group. His responsibilities include:
•
•
•
•

Scheduling of Board Meetings (with the assistance of the Company Secretary) when necessary to enable the
Board to perform its duties responsibly while not interfering with the ﬂow of the Group’s operations.
Preparing meeting agenda (in consultation with the Group MD).
Assisting in ensuring the Group’s compliance with the Code.
Reviewing most board papers before they are presented to the Board.

As Group MD, Mr Or Toh Wat, PBM, is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s affairs. Mr Or Toh
Wat, PBM, executes the strategic plans set out by the Board and ensures that the Directors are kept updated and
informed of the Group’s businesses.
Both the Group Chairman and the Group MD exercise control over the quality, quantity and timeliness of information
ﬂow between the Board and the Management.
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Board Membership
Principle 4:

There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment of new directors to the Board.
As a principle of good corporate governance, all directors should be required to submit themselves for
re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals.

Our Policy and Practices:
We believe that Board renewal must be an ongoing process to ensure good governance and maintain relevance to the
changing needs of the Company and its businesses.
The NC was formed on 10 July 2002 and now comprises Mr Tan Boen Eng, Dr Chen Seow Phun, John and Mr
Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay, all of whom are non-executive and independent directors. The Chairman of the NC
is Mr Tan Boen Eng.
The main terms of reference of the NC are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

To review nominations for the appointment and re-appointment to the Board and the various committees.
To decide on how the Board’s performance may be evaluated, and propose objective performance criteria to
assess effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each Director.
To decide, where a Director has multiple board representation, whether the Director is able to and has been
adequately carrying out his duties as Director of the Company.
To ensure that all Directors submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals and at least
once every three years.
To determine on an annual basis whether or not a Director is independent.

The NC is charged with the responsibility of re-nominating the Directors. Pursuant to Article 107 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors (except the Group MD) shall retire from ofﬁce at least once every
three years at the Company’s Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). In addition, Article 109 provides that the retiring
Directors are eligible to offer themselves for re-election. Directors of or over 70 years of age are required to be reelected every year at the AGM under Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, before they can continue to act
as a Director. Article 112 provides that each term of appointment of the Group MD shall not exceed ﬁve years. The
year of initial appointment and last re-election of each of the Directors are set out below:
Name

Age

Position

Date of Initial
Appointment

Date of last reelection

Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM

71

Group Chairman

15 February 2002

27 April 2005

Mr Or Toh Wat, PBM

38

Group Managing Director

15 February 2002

Not Applicable

Ms Ang Beng Tin

50

Executive Director

20 March 2002

27 April 2005

Mr Or Kiam Meng

41

Executive Director

20 March 2002

27 April 2004

Mr Oh Enc Nam

50

Executive Director

20 March 2002

27 April 2005

Dr Chen Seow Phun, John

51

Independent Director

25 June 2002

30 April 2003

Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay

53

Independent Director

1 June 2005

Not Applicable

Mr Tan Boen Eng

73

Independent Director

25 June 2002

27 April 2005

The NC is also charged with determining annually whether or not a Director is independent. The NC is of the view that
the non-executive Directors are independent.
When a Director has multiple board representations, the NC also considers whether or not the Director is able to and
has adequately carried out his duties as a Director of the Company.
Information required in respect of the academic and professional qualiﬁcation, directorship or chairmanship both
present and those held over the preceding three years in other listed companies is set out in the “Board of Directors”
section of this Annual Report. In addition, information on shareholdings in the Company held by each Director is set
out in the “Directors’ Report” section of this Annual Report.
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Board Performance
Principle 5:

There should be a formal assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution
by each director to the effectiveness of the Board.

Our Policy and Practices:
We believe that the Board’s performance is ultimately reﬂected in the performance of the Company. The Board should
ensure compliance with applicable laws and Board members should act in good faith, and with due diligence and care
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. In addition to these ﬁduciary duties, the Board is charged
with two key responsibilities: setting strategic directions and ensuring that the Company is ably led and managed. The
measure of a Board’s performance is also tested by its ability to lend support to Management, especially in times of
crisis and to steer the Group in the right direction.
Based on the recommendations by the NC, the Board has established processes and objective performance criteria
for evaluating the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the effectiveness of the individual Directors. These
performance criteria allow the Company to make comparisons with its industry peers and are linked to long-term
enhancement of shareholders’ value. The selected performance criteria will not be changed from year to year unless
they are deemed necessary and the Board is able to justify the changes.
The NC is of the view that the primary objective of the assessment exercise is to create a platform for the Board
members to encourage exchange of feedback on the Board’s strengths and shortcomings with a view to strengthening
the effectiveness of the Board.
The NC met once and conducted its third round of assessment in FY2006.

Access to Information
Principle 6:

In order to fulﬁl their responsibilities, board members should be provided with complete, adequate and
timely information prior to board meetings and on an on-going basis.

Our Policy and Practices:
We believe that the Board should be provided with timely and complete information prior to Board meetings and as and
when the need arises.
In FY2005, the Management provided members of the Board with half-year management accounts, as well as relevant
background information relating to the matters that were discussed at the Board meetings.
Detailed board papers are sent out to the Directors before the scheduled meetings so that the members may better
understand the issues arising for discussion. All the independent Directors have access to the senior executives in the
Group.
Directors have separate and independent access to the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary attends all
board meetings and assists the Board in ensuring that the Company complies with the relevant requirements of the
Companies Act, Cap. 50 and the SGX-ST.
Each member of the Board has direct access to the Group’s independent professional advisors. Any cost of obtaining
professional advice is borne by the Company.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
Principle 7:

There should be a formal and transparent procedure for ﬁxing the remuneration packages of individual
directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Our Policy and Practices:
We believe that a framework of remuneration for the Board and key executives should be linked to the development of
management’s strength and key executives to ensure that there is a continual development of talent and renewal of
strong and sound leadership for the continued success of the Company.
The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) was formed on 10 July 2002 and now comprises Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi
Pillay, Dr Chen Seow Phun, John, and Mr Tan Boen Eng, all of whom are non-executive and independent Directors. The
Chairman of the RC is Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay.
The main terms of reference of the RC are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

To recommend to the Board a framework of remuneration for Board members and key executives.
To determine speciﬁc remuneration packages for each Executive Director.
To determine the appropriateness of the remuneration of non-executive Directors taking into consideration the
level of their contribution.
To review and recommend to the Board the terms of renewal of the service agreements of Executive Directors.
To consider the disclosure requirements for Directors’ and key executives’ remuneration as required by the SGX-ST.

The RC members are familiar with executive compensation matters as they manage their own businesses and/or are
holding other directorships in the boards of other listed companies.
The RC recommends to the Board a framework of remuneration for the Board and key executives to ensure that
the structure is competitive and sufﬁcient to attract, retain and motivate senior management to run the Company
successfully in order to maximise shareholders’ value. The members of the RC do not participate in any decisions
concerning their own remuneration.

Level and Mix of Remuneration
Principle 8:

The level of remuneration should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the directors needed to
run the company successfully but companies should avoid paying more for this purpose. A proportion of
the remuneration especially that of executive directors, should be linked to performance.

Our Policy and Practices:
In setting remuneration packages, the RC ensures that the Directors are adequately but not excessively remunerated
as compared to the Company’s industry peers.
The Company has a staff remuneration policy which comprises a ﬁxed component and a variable component. The ﬁxed
and variable components are in the form of a base salary and variable bonus that is linked to the performance of the
Company and individual. In FY2005, variable or performance related income/ bonus made up 6% to 7% of the total
remuneration of the Directors.
All independent and non-executive Directors do not have service agreements with the Company. They are paid Directors’
fees, which are determined by the Board based on the responsibilities of the independent Directors and the effort
and time spent by them on the Company’s matters. The fees are subject to approval by the shareholders at each
AGM. Except as disclosed, the independent and non-executive Directors do not receive any remuneration from the
Company.
The RC has reviewed and approved the service agreements of all the Executive Directors in FY2005. Each of the
Executive Directors has a formal service agreement which shall be automatically renewed on a yearly basis. There
are no excessively long or onerous removal clauses in these service agreements. The service agreements may be
terminated by the Company giving each Executive Director one month’s notice in writing or, in lieu of notice, payment
of one month’s salary based on the Executive Director’s last drawn salary.
The Company does not have any employee share option schemes.
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Disclosure on Renumeration
Principle 9:

Each company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policy, level and mix of remuneration,
and the procedure for setting remuneration, in the company’s annual report.

Our Policy and Practices:
The Board has not included a separate annual remuneration report in this annual report as the Board is of view that the
matters which are required to be disclosed in the annual remuneration report have already been sufﬁciently disclosed
in this corporate governance report and in the ﬁnancial statements of the Company.
A breakdown, showing the level and mix of each individual Director’s remuneration in FY2005 is as follows:
Remuneration of Directors for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005
Remuneration Band &
Name of Director

Base/ﬁxed
salary *

Variable or
performance
related income
/bonuses

Director’s
fees **

Total

$250,000 to $499,999
Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM
Mr Or Toh Wat, PBM
Ms Ang Beng Tin
Mr Or Kiam Meng

93%
94%
94%
94%

7%
6%
6%
6%

-

100%
100%
100%
100%

93%
-

7%
-

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Below $250,000
Mr Oh Enc Nam
Dr Chen Seow Phun, John
Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay
Mr Loo Choon Chiaw (2)
Mr Tan Boen Eng

(1)

Notes:
* inclusive of allowances and Central Provident Fund contributions
** these fees are subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.
(1)
(2)

Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company on 1 June 2005.
Mr Loo Choon Chiaw stepped down as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 31 May 2005.
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A breakdown, showing the level and mix of the top ﬁve key executives (who are not Directors of the Company) in
FY2005 is as follows:
Remuneration of Key Executives for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005
Remuneration Band &
Name of Key Executive

Base/ﬁxed
salary *

Variable or
performance
related income
/bonuses

Total

Below $250,000
Ms Ong Wei Wei
Mr Goh Theng Kwee
Mr Or Yew Whatt (3)(5)
Mr Oh Kim Poy (4)(5)
Mr Ang Peng Seong

82%
90%
87%
86%
95%

18%
10%
13%
14%
5%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Notes:

* inclusive of allowances and Central Provident Fund contributions
(3)
(4)
(5)

Mr Or Yew Whatt is the nephew of Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM, who is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr Oh Kim Poy is the brother of Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM, who is the Chairman of the Company.
Both Mr Or Yew Whatt and Mr Oh Kim Poy are directors of a subsidiary company of the Company.

No employee who is an immediate family member of a Director was paid more than $150,000 during the ﬁnancial year
ended 31 December 2005. “Immediate family member” means the spouse, child, adopted child, step-child, brother,
sister and parent.
The Company does not have any employee share option scheme.

3.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Accountability
Principle 10: The Board is accountable to the shareholders while the Management is accountable to the Board.
Our Policy and Practices:
The Board has always believed that it should conduct itself in ways that deliver maximum sustainable value to the
shareholders. The Board promotes best practices as a means to build an excellent business for the shareholders.
The Board is accountable to shareholders for the Company’s performance.
Prompt fulﬁlment of statutory reporting requirements is but one way to maintain the shareholders’ conﬁdence and trust
in the Board’s capability and integrity.
The Board provides the shareholders with a detailed and balanced explanation and analysis of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects on a half-yearly basis. This responsibility extends to reports to regulators.
The Management currently provides the Board with appropriately detailed management accounts of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects on a half yearly basis. Further, the Management has been providing all the
Executive Directors (who represent more than 60% of the Board) with monthly consolidated ﬁnancial reports. However,
such monthly consolidated ﬁnancial reports may not always be reﬂective of the true and fair view of the ﬁnancial position
of the Group.
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Audit Committee
Principle 11: The Board should establish an Audit Committee (“AC”) with written terms of reference which clearly set
out its authority and duties.
Our Policy and Practices:
The AC of the Company comprises Dr Chen Seow Phun, John, Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay and Mr Tan Boen
Eng, all of whom are non-executive and independent. This complies with the requirement of Code. The Chairman of
the AC is Dr Chen Seow Phun, John.
The AC carries out its functions in accordance with the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50, the Best Practices Guide
and the Code. The main terms of reference of the AC are as follows:
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

To review the Company’s external auditors’ annual audit plan.
To review the external auditors’ reports.
To review the co-operation given by the Company’s ofﬁcers to the external auditors.
To review the Company’s half-year and full-year results announcements, the ﬁnancial year statements of the
Company and the consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the Group before submission to the Board for approval of
release of the results announcement to the SGX-ST.
Review the independence and objectivity of external auditors annually.
To nominate external auditors for appointment and re-appointment.
To review all interested person transactions to ensure that each has have been conducted on an arm’s length
basis.

Dr Chen Seow Phun, John is a Member of Parliament and a businessman. Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay is
the managing partner of a law ﬁrm and Mr Tan Boen Eng is by profession a certiﬁed public accountant and he is the
President of the Institute of Certiﬁed Public Accountants of Singapore. The Board is of the view that the AC has the
requisite ﬁnancial management expertise and experience to discharge its responsibilities properly.
The AC is authorised to investigate any matter within its terms of reference, and has full access to and co-operation of
the Management. The AC has full discretion to invite any Director or executive ofﬁcer to attend its meetings, as well
as reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its function properly. In performing its functions, the AC also reviews
the assistance given by the Company’s ofﬁcers to the external auditors.
The AC has reviewed the volume of non-audit services provided to the Company by the external auditors, and being
satisﬁed that the nature and extent of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the external
auditors, has conﬁrmed their re-nomination.
The AC has met with the external auditors without the presence of Management. The AC also met with the external
auditors to discuss the results of their examinations and their evaluations of the systems of internal accounting
controls.
The AC annually reviews the scope and results of the audit and its cost effectiveness and the independence and
objectivity of the external auditors.
The AC met twice in FY2005. Minutes of AC meetings are circulated to fellow Directors by the Company Secretary.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company is in compliance with the Best Practices Guide.

Internal Controls
Principle 12: The Board should ensure that the Management maintains a sound system of internal controls to
safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the company’s assets.
Our Policy and Practices:
We believe in the need to put in place a system of internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ interests and Group’s
assets, and to manage risks.
The AC acknowledges that the Group’s system of internal and operational controls has a key role to play in the identiﬁcation
and management of risks that are signiﬁcant in relation to the achievement of its business objectives. While no costeffective internal control system can provide absolute assurance against loss or mis-statement, the Group’s internal
controls and systems have been designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, operational
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controls are in place, business risks are suitably protected, proper accounting records are maintained and ﬁnancial
information used within the business and for publication, are reasonable and accurate. Procedures are in place to
identify major business risks and evaluate potential ﬁnancial effects. In addition, the AC reviews the effectiveness of
internal and operational controls and risk management on an annual basis.
The Company’s external auditors, Nexia Tan and Sitoh, carried out, during the course of their audit, a review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s material internal controls, including ﬁnancial, operational and compliance controls.
Based on their review, the Board is of the view that there are adequate internal controls in the Group.

Internal Audit
Principle 13: The company should establish an internal audit function that is independent of the activities it audits.
Our Policy and Practices:
Due to the relatively small size and operations of the Group, the Company is of the view that the engagement of internal
auditors would incur unnecessary expenses. As such, the Company has requested the external auditor to perform
ﬁnancial audits and the audit of other management processes to ensure compliance with the Company’s system of
internal controls.
The external auditors, Nexia Tan & Sitoh who are members of the Institute of Internal Auditors (“IIA”) and have adopted
the Standards for Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by the IIA.
The external auditors have direct access to the AC.

4.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Principle 14: Companies should engage in regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.
Principle 15: Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at AGMs, and allow shareholders the
opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the company.
Our Policy and Practices:
The Company believes in regular and timely communication with shareholders as part of its organisational development
to build systems and procedures.
The Board is mindful of the obligation to provide shareholders information on all major developments that affect the
Group in accordance with the SGX-ST’s Listing Rules and the Companies Act, Cap. 50.
The Board places great emphasis on investor relations. The Company strives to maintain a high standard of transparency
and to promote better investor communications.
Information is communicated to shareholders on a timely basis through:
•
•
•

Annual reports that are prepared and issued to all shareholders within the mandatory period.
SGXNET and the press.
The Company’s website at http://www.okph.com at which shareholders can access information on the Group.

At AGMs, shareholders are given the opportunity to air their views and ask Directors or the Management questions
regarding the Company. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGMs to ensure a high level of accountability and
to stay informed of the Group’s strategies and goals. The AGM is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders.
The members of the AC, NC and RC will be present at AGMs to answer questions relating to the work of these
committees. The external auditors will also be present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
shareholders.
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5.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted an Internal Code of Conduct on Dealing in the Company’s securities. The Code has been
modelled along the Best Practices Guide in the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.
Directors and all key executives are advised not to deal in the Company’s shares on short-term considerations or when
they are in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information. They are not allowed to deal in the Company’s shares
during the period commencing one month before the announcement of the Company’s half-yearly results and ending on
the date of the announcement of the results. All employees are required to report to the Company Secretary whenever
they deal in the Company’s shares.

6.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted an internal policy in respect of any transactions with interested persons and has procedures
established for the review and approval of the Company’s Interested Person Transactions.
The AC reviewed the following interested person transactions for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005 in
accordance with its existing procedures:Name of Interested Person

Aggregate Value of all Interested Person
Transactions during the ﬁnancial year ended
31 December 2005
$’000

Sale of motor vehicle
Oh Enc Nam (1)
Provision of legal services
Niru & Co (2)
Loo & Partners (3)

130

1
19

Notes:
(1)

Mr Oh Enc Nam is an Executive Director of the Company.

(2)

Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay, who is an independent Director of the Company, is the Managing Director of Niru
& Co. Mr Pillay was appointed as an independent Director of the Company on 1 June 2005.

(3)

Mr Loo Choon Chiaw, who was an independent Director of the Company, is the Managing Director of Loo & Partners.
Mr Loo stepped down as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 31 May 2005.

The Board conﬁrms that each of these interested person transactions were entered into on an arm’s length basis, on
normal commercial terms and are not prejudicial to the shareholders.

7.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND PROCESSES
Information relating to risk management policies and processes are set out on page 37 to 38 of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ Report
for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005

We are pleased to present this report to the members of the Company together with the audited ﬁnancial statements of the
Group and balance sheet of the Company for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005.

Directors
The directors of the Company in ofﬁce at the date of this report are:
Or Kim Peow
Or Toh Wat
Ang Beng Tin
Or Kiam Meng
Oh Enc Nam
Chen Seow Phun, John
Tan Boen Eng
Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay (appointed on 1 June 2005)
Loo Choon Chiaw (resigned on 31 May 2005)

Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the ﬁnancial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose objects
are to enable the directors of the Company to acquire beneﬁts by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Shares or Debentures
According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, particulars
of interests of directors who held ofﬁce at the end of the ﬁnancial year including those held by their spouses in shares or
debentures in the Company and in related corporations other than wholly-owned subsidiary companies are as follows:Holdings registered in name of the director

Holdings in which the director
is deemed to have an interest
At beginning
At end
At
At beginning
At end
At
of the year of the year 21 January 2006 of the year of the year 21 January 2006

The Company
Ordinary shares of
$0.10 each fully paid
Or Kim Peow
Or Toh Wat
Ang Beng Tin
Or Kiam Meng
Oh Enc Nam
Chen Seow Phun, John

4,830,000
2,838,000
2,939,000
2,838,000
1,044,000
-

4,830,000
2,838,000
2,939,000
2,838,000
1,044,000
-

4,830,000
2,838,000
2,939,000
2,838,000
1,044,000
-

97,091
58,255
60,272
58,255
21,436

97,091
58,255
60,272
58,255
21,436

97,091
58,255
60,272
58,255
21,436

89,901,940 89,901,940
20,000
20,000

89,901,940
20,000

Immediate and Ultimate
Holding Company
Ordinary shares of
$1.00 each fully paid
Or Kim Peow
Or Toh Wat
Ang Beng Tin
Or Kiam Meng
Oh Enc Nam

-

-

-
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Directors’ Interests in Shares or Debentures (Cont’d…)
By virtue of Section 7 of the Act, Or Kim Peow is deemed to have an interest in the shares of all the wholly-owned subsidiary
companies, at the beginning and at the end of the ﬁnancial year.
Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held ofﬁce at the end of the ﬁnancial year had interests in shares or
debentures of the Company or of related corporations either at the beginning or at the end of the ﬁnancial year.
Except as disclosed above, there were no changes in any of the above mentioned interests in the Company or in the ultimate
holding company between the end of the ﬁnancial year and 21 January 2006.

Directors’ Contractual Beneﬁts
During the ﬁnancial year, the Company and its related corporation have during the normal course of business entered into
various transactions with companies in which one of the directors is deemed to have an interest. However, the directors
have neither received nor become entitled to receive any beneﬁts arising out of these transactions other than those to which
they are ordinarily entitled to as directors and members of these companies. The values of the above interested person
transactions individually and in aggregate do not exceed the materiality thresholds as set out in Chapter 9 of the Singapore
Exchange Listing Manual.
Except as disclosed in Note 32 to the accompanying ﬁnancial statements, since the end of the last ﬁnancial year, no director
of the Company has received or become entitled to receive a beneﬁt (other than as disclosed as directors’ remuneration and
fees in the accompanying ﬁnancial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with
the director or with a ﬁrm of which he is a member or with a company in which he has a substantial ﬁnancial interest.

Share Options
During the ﬁnancial year, there were:(i)

no options granted by the Company or its subsidiary companies to any person to take up unissued shares in the
Company or its subsidiary companies.

(ii)

no shares issued by virtue of any exercise of option to take up unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiary
companies.

As at the end of the ﬁnancial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiary companies under
option.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee members at the date of this report are Dr Chen Seow Phun, John (Chairman), Mr Nirumalan s/o V
Kanapathi Pillay and Mr Tan Boen Eng.
The Audit Committee carried out its functions in accordance with Section 201B (5) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, the
Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange, and the Code of Corporate Governance.
The principal responsibility of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in the identiﬁcation and monitoring of
the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the reliability and integrity of ﬁnancial statements;
impact of new, revised or proposed changes in accounting policies or regulatory requirements on the ﬁnancial
statements;
compliance with laws and regulations, particularly those of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, and the Listing Manual of
the Singapore Exchange;
appropriateness of half year and full year announcements and reports;
the effectiveness and efﬁciency of external audits;
the appointment and re-appointment of external auditors and the level of auditors’ remuneration;
the nature and extent of non-audit services and their impact on independence and objectivity of the external auditors;
and
interested persons transactions
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Audit Committee (Cont’d…)
Due to the relatively small size and operations of the Group, the Company is of the view that the engagement of internal auditors
would incur unnecessary expense. As such, the Company has requested the external auditor to perform ﬁnancial audits and
the audit of other management processes as to ensure compliance with the Company’s system of internal controls.
The Audit Committee met twice in FY2005. Speciﬁc functions of the Audit Committee include reviewing the scope of work of
the external auditors, and receiving and considering the reports of the external auditors. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the assistance given by the Company’s ofﬁcers to the external auditors.
The Audit Committee has met with the external auditors without the presence of Management, to discuss issues of concern
to them. The Audit Committee recommends the re-appointment of the external auditors. The Audit Committee also met with
the external auditors to discuss the results of their examinations and their evaluations of the Company’s systems of internal
accounting controls.
In addition, the Audit Committee has, in accordance with Chapter 9 of the Singapore Exchange Listing Manual, reviewed
the requirements for approval and disclosure of interested party transactions, reviewed the internal procedures set up by
the Company to identify and report and, where necessary, seek approval for interested person transactions and, with the
assistance of the external auditors, reviewed interested person transactions.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the quantum and nature of fees, expenses and emoluments paid to the auditors for nonaudit services and are satisﬁed that the provision of such services does not affect their independence.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the auditors, Nexia Tan & Sitoh, be nominated for
re-appointment as auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Auditors
The auditors, Nexia Tan & Sitoh, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Or Kim Peow
Director

Or Toh Wat
Director

Singapore
27 March 2006
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In our opinion:

(a)

the ﬁnancial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company as set out on pages 58 to 89 are drawn
up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2005
and of the results of the business, changes in equity and cash ﬂows of the Group for the ﬁnancial year then ended;
and

(b)

at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts
as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these ﬁnancial statements for issue.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Or Kim Peow
Director

Or Toh Wat
Director

Singapore
27 March 2006
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Report of Auditors
to the Members of OKP Holdings Limited

We have audited the accompanying ﬁnancial statements of OKP Holdings Limited as set out on pages 58 to 89 for the
ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005, comprising the consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the Group and the balance
sheet of the Company. The ﬁnancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s directors. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these ﬁnancial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ﬁnancial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnancial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signiﬁcant estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall ﬁnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
In our opinion,
(a)

the consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and the statement of changes in equity of the
Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (“the Act”) and
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2005 and the results, changes in equity and cash ﬂows of the Group and the changes
in equity of the Company for the ﬁnancial year then ended on that date; and

(b)

the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiary companies
incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of
the Act.

Nexia Tan & Sitoh
Certiﬁed Public Accountants

Singapore
27 March 2006
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Balance Sheets
as at 31 December 2005

The Group
Note

Non-Current Assets
Properties, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiary companies
Interests in associated company
Investment property
Intangible asset
Deferred tax assets

Current Assets
Construction contracts work-in-progress
Trade receivables
Advance to subsidiary companies
Amounts due from subsidiary companies
Amounts due from an associated
company (non-trade)
Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Advance to subsidiary companies
Amounts due to subsidiary company (non-trade)
Current portion of obligations
under hire purchase creditors
Current portion of interest-bearing
bank loans (secured)
Current tax payable

3
4
5
6
7
8

2004
$

7,160,156
62,728
800,048
1,687,551
78,744

21,519
14,089,986
-

36,483
13,926,094
-

9,241,254

9,789,227

14,111,505

13,962,577

2,614,361
9,287,317
-

5,283,430
13,590,802
-

450,000
3,166,203

450,000
1,890,317

-

223

-

-

742,676
12,781,302

735,948
11,935,297

30,242
219,942

13,524
218,084

25,425,656

31,545,700

3,866,387

2,571,925

15
11
16

14,073,873
-

18,422,908
-

355,110
1,300,000
2,000

521,998
-

17

566,325

835,437

11,400

11,400

18

178,050

1,100,000
446,649

7,950

32,800

14,818,248

20,804,994

1,676,460

566,198

10,607,408

10,740,706

2,189,927

2,005,727

9
10
11
12

13
14

17
8

(935,842)
(381,655)
(1,317,497)

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Share premium
Revenue reserves
Minority interests

The Company
2005
2004
$
$

6,678,508
800,048
1,687,551
75,147

Net Current Assets
Non-Current Liabilities
Obligations under hire purchase creditors
Deferred tax liabilities

2005
$

19
20

(1,283,505)
(328,971)
(1,612,476)

(7,602)
(7,602)

(19,002)
(19,002)

18,531,165

18,917,457

16,293,830

15,949,302

13,626,094
1,329,321
3,579,653

13,626,094
1,329,321
3,962,042

13,626,094
1,329,321
1,338,415

13,626,094
1,329,321
993,887

18,535,068
(3,903)

18,917,457
-

16,293,830
-

15,949,302
-

18,531,165

18,917,457

16,293,830

15,949,302

The accompanying notes set out on page 63 to 89 form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements
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Consolidated Proﬁt and Loss Statement
for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005

Note

Revenue

21

Cost of works

22

Gross proﬁt
Other Income

23

Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

The Group
2005
2004
$
$
61,439,878

(57,774,961) (67,261,279)
3,664,917

5,448,566

852,598

444,895

(3,854,622)

(3,975,448)

(47,226)

(11,168)

Proﬁt from operations

24

615,667

Finance costs

26

(107,418)

Share of results of an associated company

5

Proﬁt from ordinary activity before taxation
Taxation

508,249

27

Proﬁt after taxation

72,709,845

(233,415)

1,906,845
(178,343)
(15,662)
1,712,840
(150,431)

274,834

1,562,409

285,288

1,562,409

Attributable to:Shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings per share (cents)
-Basic
-Diluted

(10,454)

28
28

-

274,834

1,562,409

0.20
0.20

1.15
1.15

The accompanying notes set out on page 63 to 89 form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company

The Group

Note

Balance at 1 January 2004
Net proﬁt for the year
Final dividend paid of 0.41 cents
per share in respect of ﬁnancial
year ended 31 December 2003

29

Balance at 31 December 2004

Share
Capital
$

Share
Premium
$

Revenue
Reserves
$

13,626,094

1,329,321

2,962,633

- 17,918,048

-

-

1,562,409

-

-

-

13,626,094

1,329,321

(563,000)
3,962,042

Incorporation of a subsidiary

Total
Equity
$

-

1,562,409

(563,000)

- 18,917,457
6,551

Net proﬁt for the year
Final dividend paid of 0.49 cents
per share in respect of ﬁnancial
year ended 31 December 2004

Minority
Interests
$

29

Balance at 31 December 2005

(10,454)

6,551

-

-

285,288

-

-

(667,677)

13,626,094

1,329,321

3,579,653

(3,903) 18,531,165

13,626,094

1,329,321

721,514

- 15,676,929

-

-

835,373

-

835,373

-

-

(563,000)

-

(563,000)

13,626,094

1,329,321

993,887

-

-

1,012,205

-

-

13,626,094

1,329,321

-

274,834

(667,677)

The Company
Balance at 1 January 2004
Net proﬁt for the year
Final dividend paid of 0.41 cents
per share in respect of ﬁnancial
year ended 31 December 2003

29

Balance at 31 December 2004
Net proﬁt for the year
Final dividend paid of 0.49 cents
per share in respect of ﬁnancial
year ended 31 December 2004

Balance at 31 December 2005

29

(667,677)

1,338,415

- 15,949,302
-

-

1,012,205

(667,677)

- 16,293,830

The accompanying notes set out on page 63 to 89 form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005

Note

The Group
2005
2004
$
$

Cash ﬂows from operating activities
Proﬁt before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment
Loss on foreign exchange (unrealised)
Loss on disposal of plant and machinery
Gain on disposal of plant and machinery
Impairment loss of properties
Impairment loss of investment property
Interest income from bank deposits
Hire purchase interest
Bank loan interest
Loss on disposal of an associated company
Allowances for doubtful receivables (trade)
Share of losses from associated company
Operating cash ﬂow before working capital changes

508,249

3

3
6

10
5

1,712,840

1,424,273
23,209
22,400
(115,297)
23,864
(129,800)
100,714
6,704
1,616
(47,579)
-

1,553,001
5,717
5,451
(35,609)
23,333
70,000
(32,388)
90,861
87,482
47,579
15,662

1,818,353

3,543,929

2,669,069
4,351,063
6,278
223
(4,349,035)

(1,968,927)
(3,355,423)
(79,812)
(223)
7,040,161

4,495,951

5,179,705

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Construction contracts work-in-progress
Trade receivables
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
Amounts due from an associated company (non-trade)
Trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Hire purchase interest paid
Bank loans interest paid
Interest income from bank deposits received
Income tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

(100,714)
(6,704)
129,800
(458,739)
4,059,594

(90,861)
(87,482)
32,388
(849,620)
4,184,130

The accompanying notes set out on page 63 to 89 form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005

Note

The Group
2005
2004
$
$

Cash ﬂows from investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment
Investment in associated company
Proceeds for disposal of an investment

(799,371)
265,380
61,112

(818,903)
220,878
(109)
-

Net cash used in investing activities

(472,879)

(598,134)

Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities
Repayment of long term bank loans
Proceeds from short term bank loans
Repayments of hire purchase creditors
Dividends paid to shareholders
Fixed deposits pledged with banks
Issuance of shares to minority

(1,100,000)
(956,376)
(667,677)
(88,494)
6,551

(1,865,738)
1,100,000
(715,913)
(563,000)
(1,731,918)
-

Net cash used in ﬁnancing activities

(2,805,996)

(3,776,569)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

780,719

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ﬁnancial year

6,967,876

Effects of exchange rate changes on balances held in foreign currencies
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ﬁnancial year

(190,573)
7,164,166

(23,209)
14

7,725,386

(5,717)
6,967,876

The accompanying notes set out on page 63 to 89 form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements

Annual Report 2005

63

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying accounts.
The ﬁnancial statements of OKP Holdings Limited for the year ended 31 December 2005 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 27 March 2006.

1

General Information
OKP Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated and domiciled in Singapore and listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange Dealing and Automated Quotation System. The registered ofﬁce of the Company is at No. 6 Tagore Drive
#B1-06 Tagore Industrial Building, Singapore 787623.
The principal activities of the Company, are those relating to investment holding and the provision of management
services to its subsidiary companies. The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are set out in Note 4 to the
ﬁnancial statements.
The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding corporation is Or Kim Peow Investments Pte. Ltd., a company
incorporated in Singapore.
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiary companies (referred as the “Group”).

2

Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
The signiﬁcant accounting policies which have been consistently applied in the preparation of the ﬁnancial information
of the Group and the Company are as follows:(a)

Basis of preparation
The ﬁnancial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”),
including related interpretations promulgated by the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance.
The preparation of ﬁnancial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of ﬁnancial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
ﬁnancial year. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differs from those estimates. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions used
that are signiﬁcant to the ﬁnancial statements, and areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
are disclosed below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2

Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies (Cont’d…)
(b)

Changes in accounting policies
•

Adoption of revised FRS
In 2005, the Group and the Company adopted the following new/revised FRSs which are relevant to its
operations:FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS
FRS

1 (revised 2004) – Presentation of Financial Statements
8 (revised 2004) – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
10 (revised 2004) – Events after the Balance Sheet Date
16 (revised 2004) – Property, Plant and Equipment
17 (revised 2004) – Leases
21 (revised 2004) – The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
24 (revised 2004) – Related Party Disclosures
27 (revised 2004) – Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
28 (revised 2004) – Investment in Associates
32 (revised 2004) – Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
33 (revised 2004) – Earnings Per Share
39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

There is no material effect on the ﬁnancial statements on the adoption of the above FRSs.
(c)

Signiﬁcant accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of ﬁnancial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.
(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a signiﬁcant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next ﬁnancial year are discussed below:(1)

Impairment of goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. The carrying amount
of the Group’s goodwill as at 31 December 2005 was $1,687,551 (2004: $1,687,551).

(2)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these assets to be within 5 to 50 years. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2005 were $6,678,508
(2004: $7,160,156). Changes in the expected level if usage and technological developments could
impact the economic useful lives and the residuals values of these assets, therefore future depreciation
charges could be revised.
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2

Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies (Cont’d…)
(c)

Signiﬁcant accounting estimates and judgements (Cont’d…)
(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)
(3)

Construction contracts
The Group recognises contract revenue to the extent of contract costs incurred where it is probable those
costs will be recoverable or based on the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is measured
by reference to the contract costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs for the contract. Signiﬁcant
judgement is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the contract cost incurred, the
estimated total contract revenue and contract cost, as well as the recoverability of the contracts. Total
contract revenue also includes an estimation of the recoverable variation works that are recoverable from
the customers. In making the judgement, the Group evaluates by relying on past experience.

(ii)

Critical judgement made in applying accounting policies
(1)

Impairment of investments and ﬁnancial assets
The Group follows the guidance of FRS 39 on determining when an investment or ﬁnancial asset is otherthan-temporary impaired and this requires signiﬁcant judgement. The Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment or ﬁnancial asset is less than its
cost; and the ﬁnancial health and near-term business outlook for the investment of ﬁnancial asset, including
factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and ﬁnancing
cash ﬂow.

(d)

Basis of consolidation
(i)

Subsidiary companies
Subsidiary companies are entities over which the Group has power to govern the ﬁnancial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiary companies. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued or liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identiﬁable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
on the date of acquisition, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. Refer to note 2(g)(i) for the
accounting policy on goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries.
Subsidiary companies are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group to the date
on which that control ceases. In preparing the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the ﬁnancial
statements of subsidiary companies to ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.
Minority interest is that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a subsidiary attributable to
interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the Group. It is measured at the minorities’ share of the
fair values of the subsidiaries’ identiﬁable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition by the Group and the
minorities’ share of changes in equity since the date of acquisition, except when the losses applicable to the
minority in a subsidiary exceed the minority interest in the equity of that subsidiary. In such cases, the excess
and further losses applicable to the minority are attributed to the equity holders of the Company, unless the
minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make good the losses. When that subsidiary subsequently
reports proﬁts, the proﬁts applicable to the minority are attributed to the equity holders of the Company until
the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed to the equity holders of the Company has been recovered.
Investments in subsidiary companies are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the Company’s
balance sheet. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed
and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.
On disposal of an investments in subsidiary company, the difference between net disposal proceeds and its
carrying amount is taken to the income statement.
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2

Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies (Cont’d…)
(d)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
(ii)

Associated company
An associated company is an entity over which the Group has signiﬁcant inﬂuence, but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between and including 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associated company are accounted for in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements using the equity method of
accounting.
Equity accounting involves recording investments in associated companies initially at cost, and recognising
the Group’s share of its associated companies’ post-acquisition results and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves against the carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associated company equals or exceeds its investment in the associated company, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associated
company.
In applying the equity method, unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associated
companies are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associated companies. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provided evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the ﬁnancial statements of subsidiary companies to ensure
consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.
Investments in associated company are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the Company’s
balance sheet. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed
and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.
On disposal of an investment in associated company, the difference between disposal proceeds and its
carrying amounts is taken to the income statement.

(e)

Foreign currencies
(i)

Functional presentation currency
Items included in the ﬁnancial statements of each entity in the Company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The ﬁnancial
statements are presented in Singapore Dollars which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii)

Foreign currency transaction
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Singapore dollars at rates of
exchange approximately to those ruling at the balance sheet date. Translations in foreign currencies are
transacted at rates ruling on transaction dates. Transaction differences are included in the proﬁt and loss
statement.

(iii)

Foreign entities
The assets and liabilities of foreign entities are translated into Singapore dollars at the rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. The results of foreign entities are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising on translation are recognised directly in exchange translation
reserve.

(f)

Investment property
Investment property is held on a long term basis for the primary purpose of producing rental income. It is neither
held for resale in the ordinary course of business, nor occupied by the Group. It is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment property is assessed
and written down to its recoverable amount if lower. The impairment loss is charged to the proﬁt and loss
statement.
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2

Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies (Cont’d…)
(g)

Intangible asset
(i)

Goodwill on consolidation
Goodwill on consolidation represents the difference between the cost of acquisition of a subsidiary company
over the fair value of the Group’s share of net identiﬁable assets at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, goodwill on consolidation recognised as intangible asset is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. It is amortised on a straight-line basis in the consolidated
proﬁt and loss statement over its economic useful life up to a maximum of 10 ﬁnancial years. However,
goodwill on consolidation which is already carried in the balance sheet is not amortised after 1 January
2004. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

(h)

Properties, plant and equipment
(i)

Properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. Expenditure for additions, improvements and renewals are capitalised
and expenditure for maintenance and repairs are charged to the proﬁt and loss statement. When assets
are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the ﬁnancial statements and
any gains or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the proﬁt and loss statement.

(ii)

Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amounts of properties,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as follows:Freehold properties
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
Ofﬁce equipment
Furniture and ﬁttings

50 years
10 years
5 years
5 - 10 years
5 - 10 years

The residual values and useful lives of property plant and equipment are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

(i)

(iii)

Fully depreciated properties, plant and machinery are retained in the ﬁnancial statements until they are no
longer in use and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of these assets.

(iv)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable
amount. The impairment loss is charged to the proﬁt and loss statement.

Impairment of assets
(i)

Goodwill
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, as well as when there is any indication that the goodwill may be
impaired.
For the purpose of impairment testing goodwill, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generatingunits (CGU) expected to beneﬁt from synergies of the business combination.
An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement when the carring amount of CGU, including
goodwilll, exceeds the recoverable amount of the CGU. Recoverable amount of the CGU is the higher of the
CGU’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use.
The total impairment loss is allocated ﬁrst to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU
and then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
CGU.
Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies (Cont’d…)
(i)

Impairment of assets (Cont’d...)
(ii)

Intangible assets, Property, plant & equipment and Investment in subsidiaries, associated companies
and joint ventures
Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investments in subsidiaries, associated companies
and joint ventures are reviewed for impairment whenever there is any indication that these assets may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and value in use) of the asset is estimated to determine the amount of impairment loss.
For the purpose of impairment testing of these assets, recoverable amount is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash ﬂows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs to.
If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
An impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the assets’ recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill is increased to its revised recoverable
amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is recognised in the income statement, unless
the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(j)

Construction contracts
Construction costs include all direct material, labour costs and any overheads that are directly attributable to the
construction contracts.
Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by surveys of work
performed. Variation in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have
been agreed with the customer.
Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are probably recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that total construction costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

(k)

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash ﬂows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The amount of the allowance is recognised in the proﬁt and loss statement.

(l)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and ﬁxed deposits which are subject to an insigniﬁcant
risk of changes in values. Cash at bank and in hand and ﬁxed deposits which are held to maturity are carried at
cost.
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2

Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies (Cont’d…)
(m) Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable including intercompany payables are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group.
(n)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event,
it is probable that an outﬂow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made.

(o)

Hire purchase
Where assets are ﬁnanced by hire purchase agreements that give rights approximating to ownership, the assets
are capitalised as if they had been purchased outright at the values equivalent to the present value of the total
rental payable during the periods of the hire purchase and the corresponding hire purchase commitments are
included under liabilities. The excess of the hire purchase payments over the recorded hire purchase obligations
are treated as ﬁnance charges which are allocated over each hire purchase term so as to give a constant rate
of interest on the outstanding balance at the end of each period.

(p)

Operating lease
Asset leased out under operating leases is investment property and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses and not depreciated. Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(q)

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; and difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is taken to the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

(r)

Deferred taxation
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the ﬁnancial statements. However, if the deferred
income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable proﬁt or loss, it is not accounted for.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable proﬁt will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiary companies and
associated company, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(s)

Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic beneﬁts will ﬂow to the Company and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the proﬁt and loss statement as follows:
(i)

Revenue from road and building construction and road maintenance contracts
Revenue from road and building construction and road maintenance contracts is recognised based on
percentage of completion method by reference to physical progress on each contract at balance sheet date
determined by surveys of work performed.
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Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies (Cont’d…)
(s)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d…)
(i)

Revenue from road and building construction and road maintenance contracts [Cont’d...]
Allowance for the total anticipated loss on construction contracts is recognised in the ﬁnancial statements
as soon as the loss is foreseeable.
Allowance for liquidated damages for late completion of projects are made where there is a contractual
obligation and written notice received from customers, and where in management’s opinion an extension of
time is unlikely to be granted.

(ii)

Interest income
Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time-apportioned basis.

(iii)

Rental income
Rental income is charged to the proﬁt and loss statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

(iv)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in the proﬁt and loss statement when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

(v)

Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised upon the rendering of management and consultation services to and
acceptance by subsidiary companies.

(t)

Employee beneﬁts
(i)

Deﬁned contribution plan
Deﬁned contributions plans are post-employment beneﬁt plans under which the Group pays ﬁxed contributions
into separate entities such as Central Provident Fund, and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions if any of the funds does not hold sufﬁcient assets to pay all employee beneﬁts relating
to employee service in the current and preceding ﬁnancial years. The Group’s contribution to deﬁned
contribution plans are recognised in the ﬁnancial year to which they relate.

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for estimated liabilities for annual leave as a result of services rendered up to the balance sheet date.

(u)

Finance costs
Interest expense and similar charges are expensed in the proﬁt and loss statement in the period in which they
are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its
intended use or sale.

(v)

Related parties and related companies
Related parties refer to the directors, key management personnel of the Group and related companies and their
associates.
Related companies in the ﬁnancial statements refer to the OKP Holdings Limited and its subsidiary companies.
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Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies (Cont’d…)
(w)

Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing services (business
segment), or in providing services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business segments. The primary format, business
segments, is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.
Inter segment pricing is determined on terms agreed between segments.
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise income-earning assets and revenue, interestbearing loans, borrowing and expenses, and corporate assets and expenses.
(i)

Business segments
The Group comprises the following main business segments:
(a)
(b)

(ii)

Road & building construction
Road maintenance

Geographical segments
There is no geographical segment as the Group operates predominately in Singapore.

3

Properties, plant and equipment

The Group

Freehold
properties
$

Plant and
machinery
$

Motor
vehicles
$

Ofﬁce
Furniture
equipment and ﬁttings
$
$

Total
$

At cost
As at 1 January 2005
Additions
Disposals / written off

3,040,982 7,841,527 4,790,260
333,190
724,052
(122,215) (592,380)

564,370
2,165
(8,850)

430,169 16,667,308
79,565
1,138,972
(723,445)

As at 31 December 2005

3,040,982 8,052,502

557,685

509,734 17,082,835

4,921,932

Accumulated depreciation
and accumulated
impairment losses
As at 1 January 2005
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment losses
Disposals / written off

911,388 4,412,865 3,534,017
46,543
688,010
577,290
23,864
(112,952) (431,808)

424,802
58,022
(6,202)

224,080
54,408
-

As at 31 December 2005

981,795 4,987,923

3,679,499

476,622

278,488 10,404,327

719,963

673,991

67,037

44,935

1,553,001

As at 31 December 2005

2,059,187 3,064,579

1,242,433

81,063

231,246

6,678,508

As at 31 December 2004

2,129,594 3,428,662

1,256,243

139,568

206,089

7,160,156

Depreciation charge for 2004

47,075

9,507,152
1,424,273
23,864
(550,962)

Net book value / carrying amount
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Properties, plant and equipment (Cont’d…)
The Group
As at 31 December 2005, the details of the Group’s freehold properties are as follows:-

Freehold properties/Location

Purpose/Valuation date

Approximate
Built-in area
(in square feets)

Carrying amount/
net book value
2005
2004
$
$

Held by subsidiary companies
6 Tagore Drive #B1-05
Tagore Industrial Building,
Singapore 787623.

Ofﬁce /January 2006

2,486

959,187

979,594

6 Tagore Drive #B1-06
Tagore Industrial Building,
Singapore 787623.

Ofﬁce/January 2006

2,626

1,100,000

1,150,000

2,059,187

2,129,594

The freehold properties of the Group were valued on the basis of open market value by an independent professional
valuer. The impairment losses of $23,864 (2004:$23,333) has been transferred to the provision for impairment loss
of the Group.
Freehold properties of the Group with carrying value / net book value of $1,100,000 (2004:$1,150,000] are
mortgaged to the bank to secure the credit facilities for the Group (Note 18).
Certain plant and machinery and motor vehicles of the Group with net book value amounting to $2,449,768
(2004:$3,308,234) are acquired under hire purchase (Note 17).
Included in total depreciation expense is an amount of $1,159,742 (2004:$1,219,920) which has been included in
cost of works.
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Properties, plant and equipment (Cont’d…)
Motor
Vehicle
$

Furniture
and ﬁttings
$

Total
$

As at 1 January 2005
Additions
Disposals / written off

82,500
-

3,870
2,137
-

86,370
2,137
-

As at 31 December 2005

82,500

6,007

88,507

As at 1 January 2005
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals / written off

49,500
16,500
-

387
601
-

49,887
17,101
-

As at 31 December 2005

66,000

988

66,988

Depreciation charge for 2004

16,500

387

16,887

As at 31 December 2005

16,500

5,019

21,519

As at 31 December 2004

33,000

3,483

36,483

The Company

At cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Motor vehicle with net book value amounting to $16,500 (2004:$33,000) is acquired under hire purchase (Note
17).

4

Interests in Subsidiary Companies
The Company
2005
2004
$
$
Unquoted equity shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiary companies
- non-trade
- trade
Advance to subsidiary companies
Advance from subsidiary companies
Amount due to subsidiary company
- non-trade

14,089,986

13,926,094

1,185,603
1,980,600
450,000
(1,300,000)

18,867
1,871,450
450,000
-

(2,000)

-

Non-trade amounts and advances to subsidiary companies are unsecured, interest free with no ﬁxed terms of repayment.
Accordingly, it is not practical to determine the fair value of these balances. However, the Company does not anticipate
the carrying amounts at the balance sheet to be signiﬁcantly different from the value that would eventually be settled.
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Interests in Subsidiary Companies (Cont’d…)
Details of the subsidiary companies are as follows:-

Name of
subsidiary companies

Principal activities

Country of
incorporation

Effective
equity held
by the
Company
2005
2004

Cost of Investment
2005
2004
$
$

#

Or Kim Peow Contractors
(Private) Limited

Business of road and
building construction
and maintenance

Singapore

100%

100% 10,374,941 10,374,941

#

Eng Lam Contractors Co
(Pte) Ltd

Business of road
construction
and maintenance

Singapore

100%

100%

3,551,146

3,551,146

#

OKP Technical
Management Pte Ltd

Provision of technical
management and
consultancy services

Singapore

100%

100%

5

5

#

OKP Investments
(China) Pte Ltd

Investment holding

Singapore

100%

100%

2

2

@

OKP (CNMI)
Corporation

Business of general
construction

Saipan,
Commonwealth
of the Northern
Mariana Islands

96%

-

163,892

-

14,089,986 13,926,094

5

#

Audited by Nexia Tan & Sitoh

@

There is no statutory requirement for the ﬁnancial statements of the Company to be audited. However, the ﬁnancial statements
were audited by Nexia Tan & Sitoh for consolidation purposes.

Interests in Associated Company
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Unquoted equity shares, at cost
Share of net losses

-

78,390
(15,662)

-

62,728

Details of the associated company are as follows:-

Name of
associated company

Anhui SIN-HK
Management &
Consultancy Company
Limited (“Anhui SIN-HK”)

Principal activities

Provision of technical
management
and consultancy services

Country of
incorporation

China, Anhui

Effective
equity held
by the Group
2005 2004

-

25%

Cost of Investment
2005
2004
$
$
-

78,390
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5

Interests in Associated Company
The following table illustrates summarised information of the investment in Anhui SIN-HK:2005
$

2004
$

Share of associated company’s balance sheet:
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

-

61,316
546
(382)

Net assets

-

61,480

-

(15,662)

Share of associated company’s proﬁt:
Proﬁt after taxation

6

Investment Property
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Investment property, at cost
Less: Impairment loss

934,048
(134,000)

934,048
(134,000)

800,048

800,048

850,000
25,371

800,000
22,514

Balance at beginning of the ﬁnancial year
Charge to proﬁt and loss statement

134,000
-

64,000
70,000

Balance at end of the ﬁnancial year

134,000

134,000

Fair value
Gross rental income
Movements in impairment losses of
investment property:-

Details of the investment property are as follows:-

Description

Location

Freehold
property

No 190 Moulmein Rd
#10-03, The Huntington,
Singapore 308095.

Built-in-area
(in square feets)

Tenure/ Unexpired
term

1,151

Freehold

Net carrying value
2005
2004
$
$

800,048

800,048

The above investment property of the Group is valued annually by an independent professional valuer. Valuations are
made on the basis of open market value. It is the intention of the directors to hold the investment property for the long
term.
The impairment loss of $nil (2004: $70,000) has been transferred to the provision for impairment loss of the
Group.
Investment property is leased to third party under operating leases (Note 2p).
Investment property has been charged as security for credit facilities granted to a subsidiary company (Note 18).
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Intangible Asset
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Goodwill arising on consolidation
Change in accounting policy
- Reclassiﬁed from accumulated amortisation

1,687,551

Net book value

1,687,551

1,687,551

1,687,551

1,687,551

At beginning of the ﬁnancial year
Change in accounting policy
- Reclassiﬁed to cost

-

675,509

-

(675,509)

At end of the ﬁnancial year

-

-

2,363,060
(675,509)

Movements in intangible asset:At beginning and end of the ﬁnancial year

Movements in accumulated amortisation of goodwill:-

8

-

Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.
The amounts, determined prior to offsetting, as shown on the balance sheets as follows:The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

(75,147)
381,655

(78,744)
328,971

306,508

250,227

The movement in the deferred tax account is as follows:The Group
2005
2004
$
$
At beginning of the ﬁnancial year
Tax (credit)/charge to proﬁt and loss statement:- Effect of changes in tax rates (Note 27)
- Deferred tax income relating to the originating and reversal
of temporary differences
At end of the ﬁnancial year

250,227

-

358,065

(32,333)

56,281

(75,505)

56,281

(107,838)

306,508

250,227
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8

Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities (Cont’d…)
The movement in the deferred tax (assets) and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances) during the year is as follows:The Group
Accelerated
tax
depreciation
$

Provisions
and
allowances
$

Total
$

At 1 January 2005
Tax charge to proﬁt and loss statement

299,043
82,612

[48,816]
26,331

250,227
56,281

At 31 December 2005

381,655

[75,147]

306,508

At 1 January 2004

358,065

Tax (credit)/charge to proﬁt and
loss statement:- Effect of changes in tax rates (Note 27)
- Deferred tax income relating to the
originating and reversal
of temporary differences

At 31 December 2004

(32,333)

-

-

358,065

(32,333)

(26,689)

(48,816)

(75,505)

(59,022)

(48,816)

(107,838)

(48,816)

250,227

299,043

Net temporary differences results in deferred tax assets are not adjusted as amounts are insigniﬁcant. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future proﬁts will be available against which temporary
differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable proﬁts will be available against
which temporary differences can be utilised.

9

Construction Contracts Work-In-Progress
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Gross amount due (to) from customers for contract work
Construction costs incurred
Recognised proﬁt
Contract costs incurred and recognised proﬁt to date
Accumulated progress billings
Net

105,567,723
6,361,230

92,044,668
8,951,345

111,928,953 100,996,013
(109,314,592) (95,712,583)
2,614,361

5,283,430
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Trade Receivables
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Third parties
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables

9,287,317
-

13,638,381
(47,579)

9,287,317

13,590,802

Movements in allowance for doubtful receivables:At beginning of ﬁnancial year
Charge to proﬁt and loss statement
Allowance for doubtful receivables recovered

47,579
(47,579)

At end of ﬁnancial year

-

47,579
47,579

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited as the Group has adopted a policy to focus
on government bodies as its customers due to their low default risk on billings and prompt payments. Due to these
factors, the directors believe that no additional credit risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in
the Group’s trade receivables.
The carrying amounts of current trade receivables approximate their fair values and denominated in Singapore dollars.

11

Advances To/From Subsidiary Companies
Advances to subsidiary companies are unsecured, interest free with no ﬁxed terms of repayment. Accordingly, it is
not practical to determine the fair value of these balances. However, the Company does not anticipate the carrying
amounts at the balance sheet to be signiﬁcantly different from the value that would eventually be settled.

12

Amounts Due From Subsidiary Companies
The Company
2005
2004
$
$
Trade
Non-trade

1,980,600
1,185,603

1,871,450
18,867

3,166,203

1,890,317

Non-trade amounts are unsecured, interest free with no ﬁxed terms of repayment. The amounts due from subsidiary
companies approximate their fair values and denominated in Singapore dollars.
13

Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepayments
The Group

Other receivables
- Loan to employees
- Others
Deposits
Prepayments

The Company
2005
2004
$
$

2005
$

2004
$

5,442
180,539
252,816
303,879

18,881
85,911
223,913
407,243

3,513
26,729

13,524

742,676

735,948

30,242

13,524

Loan to employees are interest-free and unsecured. The carrying amounts of other recievables, deposits and
prepayments approximate their fair value and denominated in Singapore dollars.

Annual Report 2005

79

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005

14

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Group
2005
$
Cash at bank and in hand
Fixed deposits with banks

2004
$

The Company
2005
2004
$
$

6,464,857
6,316,445

6,874,940
5,060,357

219,942
-

218,084
-

12,781,302

11,935,297

219,942

218,084

Fixed deposits pledged to banks
Cash and cash equivalents in consolidated
statement of cash ﬂows

(5,055,916)

(4,967,421)

7,725,386

6,967,876

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values.
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:
The Group
2005
$
Singapore Dollar
United States Dollar

2004
$

The Company
2005
2004
$
$

12,209,089
572,213

11,794,091
141,206

219,942
-

218,084
-

12,781,302

11,935,297

219,942

218,084

Fixed deposits of $5,055,916 (2004:$4,967,421) of the Group are pledged to banks for banking facilities granted to
some of the subsidiary companies (Note 18).
The effective interest rates per annum relating to cash and cash equivalents at the balance sheet date for the Group
are 0.45 to 1.85% (2004: 0.40% to 0.74%). Interest rates reprice within a period of twelve months.
The exposure of cash and cash equivalents to interest rate risks is disclosed in Note 33.

15

Trade and Other Payables
The Group
2005
$
Trade payables
Accrued operating expenses
Other payables

2004
$

The Company
2005
2004
$
$

11,641,824
2,414,387
17,662

15,338,446
3,074,722
9,740

19,848
335,262
-

25,976
496,022
-

14,073,873

18,422,908

355,110

521,998

The carrying amounts of current trade, accrued operating expenses and other payables approximate their fair values
and denominated in Singapore dollars.

16

Amounts Due To Subsidiary Company (non-trade)
These amounts are unsecured, interest free with no ﬁxed terms of repayment.
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Obligations Under Hire Purchase
The Group
2005
$
Hire Purchase instalment
Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years
Less: Deferred Finance Charges

Due within 12 months
Due after 12 months

639,086
1,060,210
(197,129)

2004
$

929,391
1,450,987
(261,436)

The Company
2005
2004
$
$

12,888
8,564
(2,450)

12,888
21,452
(3,938)

1,502,167

2,118,942

19,002

30,402

566,325
935,842

835,437
1,283,505

11,400
7,602

11,400
19,002

1,502,167

2,118,942

19,002

30,402

The effective interest rates per annum relating to obligations under hire purchase at the balance sheet date for the
Group and the Company are 4.60% to 5.33% (2004: 4.12% to 5.34%) and 4.50% to 5.33% (2004: 1.80% to
4.12%) respectively.

18

Interest-Bearing Bank Loans (secured)
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Short term loans – secured

-

1,100,000

During the previous ﬁnancial year, certain subsidiary companies obtained new loan facilities to reﬁnance its existing
bank loan facilities.
Security granted
The above are secured by legal mortgages over one of the Group’s freehold properties (Note 3) and Group’s
investment property (Note 6) with net carrying value amounting to $1,100,000 (2004: $1,150,000) and $800,048
(2004:$870,048) respectively, ﬁxed deposits (Note 14) and negative pledges over assets of certain subsidiary
companies. The Company has provided corporate guarantee on the above facilities granted to the subsidiary
companies.
Maturity of borrowings
The above borrowings have the following maturity:The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Within one year
Later than one year

-

1,100,000
-

-

1,100,000
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Interest-Bearing Bank Loans (secured) (Cont’d…)
Interest rate risks
The effective interest rate as at the balance sheet date on the above borrowings ranged from $nil (2004: 1.01% to
3.01%) per annum.
The exposure of current borrowings to interest rate risks is disclosed in Note 33.
Carrying values
The fair values of the above borrowings as at balance sheet date approximate their carrying values as these borrowings
carry ﬂoating interest rates, which are reprice frequently.

19

Share Capital
The Company
2005
2004
$
$
Authorised:500,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.10 each

500,000,000 500,000,000

Issued and paid-up capital:At beginning and end of ﬁnancial year
136,260,940 ordinary shares of $0.10 each

20

13,626,094

13,626,094

Revenue Reserves
(a)

Revenue reserves of the Group and the Company are distributable.

(b)

Movements in revenue reserves for the Company is as follows:The Company
2005
2004
$
$

At beginning of ﬁnancial year
Net proﬁt for the ﬁnancial year
Dividends paid (note 29)

993,887
1,012,205
(667,677)

721,514
835,373
(563,000)

At end of ﬁnancial year

1,338,415

993,887

Movement in revenue reserves for the Group is shown in the Consolidated Statements of Changes In Equity.

21

Revenue
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Revenue from road & building construction
Revenue from road maintenance

48,758,343
12,681,535

54,129,026
18,580,819

61,439,878

72,709,845

82

OKP Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005

22

Cost of Works
Included in the cost of works are the following:The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment
Staff costs
- Salaries and bonuses
- Employer’s contribution to deﬁned contribution plans
including Central Provident Fund

23

1,159,742

1,219,920

6,962,282

7,545,361

518,074

489,268

Other Income
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Rental income from investment property
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Interest income from bank deposits
Gain on foreign exchange (realised)
Income from scrap sales
Allowance for doubtful debts recovered (trade)
Others

24

25,618
115,297
129,800
6,060
191,894
47,579
336,350

22,514
35,609
32,388
103,026
251,358

852,598

444,895

Proﬁt From Operations
The following items have been included in arriving at proﬁt from operations:-

Note

The Group
2005
2004
$
$

After charging:Non audit fee paid to:
- auditors of the Company
Depreciation of properties, plant and
equipment (included in administrative expenses)
Depreciation of properties, plant and
equipment (included in cost of works)
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment
Directors’ remuneration
- directors of the Company
- other directors
Directors’ fee
- directors of the Company
Impairment losses of
- properties, plant and equipment (included in operating
expenses)
- Investment property
Loss on foreign exchange (unrealised)
Allowances for doubtful receivables (trade)
Loss on disposal of an associated company

10,033

4,400

3

264,531

333,081

3

1,159,742
22,400

1,219,920
5,451

1,309,880
263,550

1,370,427
264,698

120,000

120,000

23,864
23,209
1,616

23,333
70,000
5,717
47,579
-

3
6
10
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Proﬁt From Operations (Cont’d…)
The Group
2005
2004
$
$

Note

And crediting:Interest income from bank deposits
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Gain on foreign exchange (realised)
Allowances for doubtful receivable recovered (trade)

25

129,800
115,297
6,060
47,579

32,388
35,609
-

Staff Costs
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Salaries and bonuses (included in administrative expenses)
Employer’s contribution to deﬁned contribution plans including
Central Provident Fund (included in administrative expenses)

1,011,166

965,640

86,311

96,436

1,097,477

1,062,076

The number of employees in the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2005 were 381 (2004: 398) and 11
(2004: 10) respectively.
The number of directors of the Company in remuneration bands is as follows:
Executive
Directors
2005
2004
$250,000 to $499,999
Below $250,000

26

Non-Executive
Directors
2005
2004

Total
2005

2004

4
1

4
1

3

3

4
4

4
4

5

5

3

3

8

8

Finance Costs
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Interest paid and payable to
- banks
- hire purchase creditors

6,704
100,714

87,482
90,861

107,418

178,343
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Income Taxes
Income tax expenses
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Current tax expense
- Current year
- Overprovision in respect of prior years

Deferred tax expenses
- Deferred tax expenses/(income) relating to the originating and
reversal of temporary differences
- Deferred income resulting from reduction in tax rate

Total tax expenses in proﬁt and loss statement

177,650
(516)

614,000
(355,731)

177,134

258,269

56,281
-

(75,505)
(32,333)

56,281

(107,838)

233,415

150,431

The tax expense on proﬁt differs from the amount that would arise using the Singapore standard rate of income tax
due to the following:The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Proﬁt before tax
Add: Share of net losses of associated company

508,249
-

1,712,840
15,662

Adjusted proﬁt before tax

508,249

1,728,502

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 20% (2004:20%)
Effect of changes in tax rate
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Effect of tax incentives
Deferred tax expenses relating to the originating
and reversal of temporary difference
Overprovision in respect of prior years
- current taxation
- deferred taxation
Tax exemption
Others

101,650
115,506
56,281
(516)
(19,163)
(20,343)
233,415

345,700
(32,333)
304,240
(5,652)
(355,731)
(75,505)
(31,500)
1,212
150,431
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Earnings Per Share
The Group
2005

Proﬁt attributable to shareholders

2004

Basic
$

Diluted
$

Basic
$

Diluted
$

285,288

285,288

1,562,409

1,562,409

Number of Shares
Weighted average number of shares
used to compute earnings per share

136,260,940

Earnings per share (cents)

29

0.20

Number of Shares

136,260,940 136,260,940 136,260,940
0.20

1.15

1.15

Dividends
The Company / The Group
2005
2004
$
$
During the ﬁnancial year, the following dividends were paid:-

First and ﬁnal one tier tax-exempt dividend paid in respect of the
previous ﬁnancial year of 0.49 cents (2004: 0.41 cents) per share (Note 20)

667,677

563,000

There is no dividend proposed in respect of the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005.
The directors proposed a ﬁnal one-tier tax exempt dividend of 0.49 cents per share amounting to a total of $667,677
in respect of the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2004, which was approved at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 27 April 2005.

30

Contingent Liabilities
The Group has contingent liabilities in respect of banker’s guarantees given to third parties and banks as a results of
construction contracts undertaken. The directors are of the view that no material liabilities will arise from the banker’s
guarantees at the date of these ﬁnancial statements.
The Group
2005
2004
$
$

Performance guarantees on construction contracts
and temporary occupational license of the
subsidiary companies

11,699,678

12,612,675

As at the balance sheet date, the Company had issued corporate guarantees amounting to $34,241,900
(2004:$12,053,900) for banking facilities granted to some of the subsidiary companies.
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Capital Commitments
Capital expenditures contracted for at balance sheet date but not recognised in the ﬁnancial statements are as
follows:
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Properties, plant and equipment

32

-

45,000

Related Party Transactions
Some of the directors have interest in the related parties. Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the
Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise signiﬁcant inﬂuence over the party in making
ﬁnancial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control or
common signiﬁcant inﬂuence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the accounts, there were the following related party
transactions took place during the ﬁnancial year on terms agreed between the parties:
The Group
2005
2004
$
$
Purchases of motor vehicles from Sin Kah Heng Motor Trading Co
Professional fees paid to Loo & Partners (Note a)
Professional fees paid to Niru & Co (Note b)
Sale of Motor Vehicle to Oh Enc Lam (Note c)
Purchase of motor vehicle from Citysafe Pte Ltd

17,882
250
130,000
-

57,000
22,600
7,000

(a)

Mr Loo Choon Chiaw, who was a director of the Company, is the Managing Partner of Loo & Partners (“L&P”).
The professional fees paid to L&P are according to prevailing market rates as compared to other legal ﬁrms
providing similar services. Mr Loo has stepped down as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from
31 May 2005.

(b)

Mr Nirumalan s/o Kanapathi Pillay, who is a director of the Company, is the Managing Partner of Niru & Co.
(“N&C”). The professional fee paid to N&C are according to prevailing market rates as compared to other legal
ﬁrms providing similar services. Mr Pillay has been appointed as an Independent Director of the company with
effect from 1 June 2005.

(c)

Oh Enc Nam, is an Executive Director of the Company.
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Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of ﬁnancial risks, particularly credit, interest rate, currency and liquidity
risks. The Group’s risk management policies seek to, where appropriate, minimise potential adverse effects of these
risks on the ﬁnancial performance of the Group. The policies for managing these risks are summarised below.
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their obligations to repay the amounts owing to the Group,
resulting in a loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy to focus on government bodies as its customers due
to their low default risk on billings and prompt payments.
As at the balance sheet date, the Group has no signiﬁcant concentration of credit risks. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each ﬁnancial asset in the balance sheet.
Interest rate risk
The Group has cash balances placed with reputable banks which generate interest income for the Group. Those
deposits are generally with short-term maturities to provide the Group the ﬂexibility to meet working capital and other
investments needs.
The Group’s debt consists of hire purchase taken up by certain subsidiaries companies to ﬁnance their respective
plant and equipment. The Group’s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available without increasing its
interest rate risk. Information relating to the Group’s interest rate exposure is also disclosed in the notes on the Group’s
ﬁnance lease arrangements.
Foreign currency risk
The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange rate risk is kept at minimal level as its purchases and sales are predominately
denominated in Singapore dollars.
In addition, the Group also has investment in foreign subsidiary company, whose net assets are exposed to currency
risk. The Group monitors its currency risk resulting from foreign currency exposure of the net assets of its foreign
subsidiary company.
Liquidity risk
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents to ﬁnance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of ﬂuctuation in cash ﬂows.
Fair value of ﬁnancial assets and liabilities
The fair values of the ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities approximates their carrying values due principally to the
short term nature of these ﬁnancial instruments.

88

OKP Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 December 2005

34

Segmental information
The Group is primarily engaged in two business segments, namely road & building construction and road maintenance.
The Group adopts these two business segments as the basis for its primary segment information. Details are presented
below:(a)

Business Segments
Statement of Group results for year ended 31 December 2005
Road & Building
Construction
$’000

Road
Maintenance
$’000

Corporate
and Others
$’000

Revenue and expenses
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

48,758
1,351

12,682
7

-

(1,358)

61,440
-

Total revenue

50,109

12,689

-

(1,358)

61,440

Elimination
$’000

Proﬁt from operations

616

Finance costs

(107)

Share of result of
associated company
Proﬁt before taxation

Group
$’000

128

380

-

-

Taxation

509
(234)

Proﬁt after taxation

275

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets
Unallocated assets

7,174
-

3,037
-

-

-

Consolidated assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

34,667
9,961
-

3,230
-

-

-

Consolidated liabilities
Depreciation and
amortisation
Impairment loss of
properties and
investment property

10,211
24,456

13,191
2,945
16,136

995

165

264

-

1,424

-

-

24

-

24
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Segmental information (Cont’d…)
(a)

Business Segments (Cont’d…)
Statement of Group results for year ended 31 December 2004
Road & Building
Construction
$’000

Road
Maintenance
$’000

Corporate
and Others
$’000

Revenue and expenses
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

54,129
2,470

18,581
1,844

-

(4,314)

72,710
-

Total revenue

56,599

20,425

-

(4,314)

72,710

Elimination
$’000

Proﬁt from operations

1,907

Finance costs
Share of result of
associated company
Proﬁt before taxation

Group
$’000

(178)
(16)
647

1,066

-

-

Taxation

1,713
(150)

Proﬁt after taxation

1,563

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets
Unallocated assets

16,368
-

2,506
-

-

-

Consolidated assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

41,335
12,771
-

4,743
-

-

-

Consolidated liabilities
Depreciation and
amortisation
Impairment loss of
properties and
investment property

(b)

18,874
22,461

17,514
4,903
22,417

916

304

333

-

1,553

-

-

93

-
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Geographical Segments
The Group operates predominantly in Singapore.
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Statistics of Shareholdings
as at 7 March 2006

Issued and fully paid-up capital:
Number of Shares:
Class of Shares:
Voting rights:

S$14,955,415
136,260,940
Ordinary share
One vote per share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Size of Shareholdings

No. of Shareholders

%

No. of Shares

%

1 - 999
1,000 - 10,000
10,001 - 1,000,000
1,000,001 and above

1,239
242
12

82.99
16.21
0.80

3,978,000
18,137,000
114,145,940

2.92
13.31
83.77

Total

1,493

100.00

136,260,940

100.00

Direct Interest

%

Deemed Interest

%

89,901,940
4,830,000

65.98
3.54

89,901,940

65.98

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
( As recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders)

Or Kim Peow Investments Pte Ltd
Or Kim Peow, PBM
Note:

Mr Or Kim Peow’s deemed interests include 89,901,940 shares held by Or Kim Peow Investments Pte Ltd by virtue of
Section 7 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
No.

Name

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Or Kim Peow Investments Pte Ltd
Or Kim Peow, PBM
Ang Beng Tin
Or Kiam Meng
Or Lay Huat Daniel
Or Toh Wat, PBM
Or Lay Hong
Or Lay Tin
Or Lay Wah Elaine
Oh Kim Poy
Oh Enc Nam
Or Yew Whatt
Ng Kim Hong
Liau Yan Keng
Loh Kim Chah
Kim Eng Securities Pte. Ltd.
Chua Geok Lin
Oh Teck Lim
Oh Hock Seng
Goh Kwang Chay
Total

No.of Shares

%

89,901,940
4,830,000
2,939,000
2,838,000
2,838,000
2,838,000
1,483,400
1,483,300
1,483,300
1,423,000
1,044,000
1,044,000
950,000
708,000
670,000
489,000
436,000
406,000
392,000
375,000
118,571,940

65.98
3.54
2.16
2.08
2.08
2.08
1.09
1.09
1.09
1.04
0.77
0.77
0.70
0.52
0.49
0.36
0.32
0.30
0.29
0.28
87.03

RULE 723 OF THE SGX LISTING MANUAL - FREE FLOAT
As at 7 March 2006, there were 20,773,000 shares in the hands of the public as deﬁned in the SGX Listing Manual,
representing 15.2% of the issued share capital of the Company. The Company conﬁrms that Rule 723 of the Listing
Manual is complied with.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fourth Annual General Meeting of OKP HOLDINGS LIMITED will be held at No. 6 Tagore
Drive, #B1-06 Tagore Industrial Building, Singapore 787623, on Thursday, 27 April 2006, at 12.00 p.m. for the following
purposes:-

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:1.

To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report, the Statement of Directors and the Audited Accounts for the year ended
31 December 2005 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.
(Resolution 1)

2.

To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to Articles 107 and 117 of the Company’s Articles of
Association:Mr Or Kiam Meng
Dr Chen Seow Phun, John
Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillay

(Retiring under Article 107)
(Retiring under Article 107)
(Retiring under Article 117)

(Resolution 2)
(Resolution 3)
(Resolution 4)

Dr Chen Seow Phun, John and Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillai will, upon-re-election as Directors of the Company,
remain as members of the Audit Committee and will be considered independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of the
Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
3.

To pass the following Ordinary Resolutions pursuant to Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50:(a)

That pursuant to Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM, be re-appointed a
Director of the Company to hold ofﬁce until the next Annual General Meeting. [see Explanatory Note (i)]
(Resolution 5)

(b)

That pursuant to Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, Mr Tan Boen Eng be re-appointed a Director
of the Company to hold ofﬁce until the next Annual General Meeting. [see Explanatory Note (i)] (Resolution 6)
Mr Tan Boen Eng will, upon re-appointment as a Director of the Company, remain as a member of the Audit
Committee and will be considered independent for the purpose of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

4.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of S$120,000 for the year ended 31 December 2005.

(Resolution 7)

5.

To re-appoint Nexia Tan & Sitoh as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to ﬁx their remuneration.
(Resolution 8)

6.

To transact any other ordinary business that may be properly transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:7.

To consider and, if thought ﬁt, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, and the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited, authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to allot and issue shares
or convertible securities from time to time (whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise) and upon such terms and
conditions and for such purposes and to such person as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem ﬁt,
provided that the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities issued pursuant to such authority shall not
exceed 50% of the issued share capital of the Company, of which the aggregate number of shares and convertible
securities issued other than on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders of the Company shall not exceed 20%
of the issued share capital of the Company (the percentage of issued share capital being based on the issued share
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capital at the time such authority is given after adjusting for new shares arising from the conversion of convertible
securities or employee share options on issue at the time such authority is given and any subsequent consolidation or
subdivision of shares) and, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, such authority shall continue
in force until the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting (“AGM“) or on the date by which the next
AGM is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier. [see Explanatory Note (ii)]
(Resolution 9)

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

SELLAKUMARAN
Company Secretary
Singapore
3 April 2006

EXPLANATORY NOTES:
(i)

The effect of Ordinary Resolutions 5 and 6 proposed in item 3 above, if passed, is to re-appoint Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM,
and Mr Tan Boen Eng, who are over 70 years old, as Directors of the Company to hold ofﬁce until the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company. Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, requires the re-appointments to
be approved by way of ordinary resolutions at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

(ii)

The Ordinary Resolution proposed in item 7 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company from the date
of the above Meeting until the next Annual General Meeting to allot and issue shares and convertible securities in the
Company up to an amount not exceeding in total ﬁfty per cent (50%) of the issued share capital of the Company for
such purposes as they consider would be in the interest of the Company, provided that the aggregate number of shares
to be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders pursuant to this Resolution shall not exceed twenty
per cent (20%) of the issued capital of the Company. The percentage of issued capital is based on the Company’s
issued capital at the time the proposed Ordinary Resolution is passed after adjusting for (a) new shares arising from the
conversion of convertible securities or employee share options on issue at the time the proposed Ordinary Resolution
is passed and (b) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares. This authority will, unless previously revoked
or varied at a General Meeting, expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or on the date by which the
next AGM is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier.

NOTES:
(i)

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting may appoint not more than two proxies to
attend and vote instead of him.

(ii)

Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each
proxy in the instrument appointing the proxies. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(iii)

If the member is a corporation, the instrument appointing the proxy must be under seal or the hand of an ofﬁcer or
attorney duly authorised.

(iv)

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Ofﬁce of the Company at No. 6 Tagore Drive,
#B1-06 Tagore Industrial Building, Singapore 787623 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding
the above Meeting.

PROXY FORM

IMPORTANT
Annual Report 2005
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy shares
in the capital of OKP Holdings Limited, this Annual Report
is forwarded to them at the request of their CPF Approved
Nominees and is sent FOR INFORMATION ONLY.
2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by such CPF investors
and shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used
or purported to be used by them.

OKP HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes
to Registration
the Financial
(Company
No. Statements
200201165G)

for
the ﬁnancial
ended 31
(Incorporated
in year
the Republic
of December
Singapore)2005

I/We,

(Name)

of

(Address)

being a member/members of OKP HOLDINGS LIMITED (the “Company”) hereby appoint:

Name

Address

NRIC/Passport No.

Proportion of
Shareholdings (%)

Address

NRIC/Passport No.

Proportion of
Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

Name

as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf, at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company, to
be held on Thursday, 27 April 2006 at 12.00 p.m., and at any adjournment thereof. I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to
vote for or against the Resolutions to be proposed at the AGM as indicated hereunder. If no speciﬁc directions as to voting
is given or in the event of any other matter arising at the AGM and at any adjournment thereof, the proxy/proxies will vote
or abstain from voting at his/their discretion.
No.

*

Resolutions relating to:

For*

1

Directors’ Report, Statement of Directors and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31
December 2005

2

Re-election of Mr Or Kiam Meng as a Director

3

Re-election of Dr Chen Seow Phun, John as a Director

4

Re-election of Mr Nirumalan s/o V Kanapathi Pillav as a Director

5

Re-appointment of Mr Or Kim Peow, PBM, as a Director

6

Re-appointment of Mr Tan Boen Eng as a Director

7

Approval of Directors’ fees amounting to S$120,000

8

Re-appointment of Nexia Tan & Sitoh as Auditors

9

Authority to allot and issue new shares

Against*

Please indicate your vote “For” or “Against” with a tick (3) within the box provided.

Dated this

day of

, 2006.
Total number of shares in:
(a) CDP Register
(b) Register of Members

Signature(s) of Member(s) or Common Seal

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF BEFORE COMPLETING THIS FORM

No. of shares
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Notes
1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one or two proxies to attend and vote in his
stead.

2.

Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the proportion of the shareholding to be represented by each proxy
shall be speciﬁed in this proxy form. If no proportion is speciﬁed, the Company shall be entitled to treat the ﬁrst named
proxy as representing the entire shareholding and any second named proxy as an alternate to the ﬁrst named or at the
Company’s option to treat this proxy form as invalid.

3.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4.

Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository
Register (as deﬁned in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, of Singapore), you should insert that number of
shares. If you have shares registered in your name in the Register of Members of the Company, you should insert that
number of shares. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your
name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of shares. If no number is inserted, this
proxy form will be deemed to relate to all the shares held by you.

5.

This proxy form must be deposited at the Company’s registered ofﬁce at 6 Tagore Drive, #B1-06 Tagore Industrial
Building, Singapore 787623, not less than 48 hours before the time set for the Meeting.

6.

This proxy form must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing. Where this proxy
form is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its common seal or under the hand of its attorney
or a duly authorised ofﬁcer.

7.

Where this proxy form is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter or power of attorney or a duly
certiﬁed copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be duly stamped and deposited with this
proxy form, failing which this proxy form shall be treated as invalid.

General
The Company shall be entitled to reject a Proxy Form which is incomplete, improperly completed, illegible or where the true
intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor speciﬁed on the Proxy Form. In
addition, in the case of shares entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject a Proxy Form if the member,
being the appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his name in the Depository Register as at 48 hours before
the time appointed for holding the Meeting, as certiﬁed by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

OKP Holdings Limited
Co. Reg. No: 200201165G
No. 6 Tagore Drive #B1-06, Tagore Industrial Building, Singapore 787623
Tel: (65) 6456 7667 •

Fax: (65) 6453 7667

www.okph.com

